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Today there is a place for girls to be themselves,
a place where there is diversity, equality,
a place to make a difference,
and that place is Girl Guides.
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
The Executive Committee has the pleasure of submitting the Trustees’ Annual Report and Financial
Statements of the charity for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the members at General Council on
5 September 2020. The date of this was postponed from the original date of 6 June 2020 due to public
health regulations around the Covid-19 global pandemic.
1.

Note from the Chief Commissioner

It is a great joy to introduce the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Irish Girl Guides for 2019.
I took on the role of Chief Commissioner in December 2019 from Helen Concannon who has led the
organisation through a number of significant developments. This includes ensuring we are compliant with
the Governance Code and the Charities Regulator requirements. IGG is an unincorporated association and
a process of development has occurred in the past number of years to review our 108 year old structure.
Following the successful presentation of a proposal to change our structure at a Council EGM in
September 2019, Irish Girl Guides began the process of converting to a Company Limited by Guarantee.
This process will be completed in 2020. The National Training Centre dream also became a reality in 2019
with the purchase of a property in Tallaght, Dublin 24, following many years of searching. This has led to
the development of a national fundraising campaign with the help of a consultant in the field of fundraising.
To date this campaign has been significantly impacted by the global pandemic but IGG continues to be
committed to this endeavour in order that the development of the building may be undertaken for the
benefit of all our members.
Irish Girl Guides’ volunteers have provided over 200,000 hours of leadership to girls and young women, in
local communities throughout Ireland in 2019. The range of activities that our Leaders plan for and carry out
with the girls are as diverse as the girls’ interests – STEM, outdoors, arts, music, sports, engineering, to
name just a few. This development in each individual person is best encouraged through positive
reinforcement and in 2019 we presented just over 55,000 badges to our members. Each one of those
badges represents a young person achieving their best in a chosen area. Each one of those badges brings
a smile of pride to the face of a girl showing her family her achievement. And each one of those badges
signifies hours of volunteerism by our Leaders.
In preparation for 2020, the vision of IGG was reviewed and a new one was confirmed following
consultation with youth and adult members. This successful consultation process began in February and
ended in December, thus giving time to ensure the involvement of all of our members.
Following the untimely passing of our Managing Director Suzanne Smith in January 2019, the organisation
paused for reflection and reviewed the staff structure. A new CEO was appointed in August 2019 and a
number of other staff roles were created, including a Tech Support and Membership staff member who
continues to provide support to staff and volunteers with the use of technology, and in particular with our
membership system Online Guide Manager. I would like to thank all staff who worked for IGG in 2019.
I cannot end this without mentioning the Covid-19 pandemic and the impact that this has had to date on the
organisation and the services that we deliver. Our staff and volunteer Leaders have adapted programmes
for completion in a virtual setting or through provision of home activities to support our Journey programme.
This on-going support and provision have promoted volunteerism and community action in local
communities and is a testament to the resilience of our members to adapt and provide continued
engagement through a variety of mediums. Many of our members are active in a diverse range of frontline
services and I would like to thank them for their work during this difficult time in all of our lives.
Yours in Guiding,

Amanda O Sullivan
Chief Commissioner and Chair of the Board of Trustees
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Summary of the Organisation’s Purpose and Activities

2.

Irish Girl Guides (IGG) is a youth-driven, active and dynamic organisation striving to develop skills and selfconfidence in girls and young women across Ireland. The Girl Guide movement was established in Ireland in
1911 and IGG exists under its Constitution and Bye-Laws, updated in September 2019. As a registered charity
and an unincorporated association, IGG continues to be a volunteer-led membership-based movement, working
in the non-formal education sector across every county in the Republic of Ireland. Irish Girl Guides offers a
varied programme in a uniformed setting for girls and young women aged 5-30, and opportunities for women
over 18 years as volunteer Leaders. The organisation has a small national and regional staff and many
supporters who contribute to the mission.
Mission
The mission of the Irish Girl Guides is to enable girls and young women to develop to their fullest potential as
responsible citizens of the world.
Aims and Objectives
IGG provides an environment where girls and young women from all backgrounds can grow in self-confidence
and develop a variety of skills in an unpressurised atmosphere. Through a broad range of activities, our aim and
objectives are that girls and young women are encouraged to:










develop leadership skills
develop a knowledge and understanding of spiritual values in their daily lives
be involved in decision making
learn practical indoor and outdoor skills
participate in the international aspects of Guiding
behave responsibly in upholding the laws of the country
be aware of and care for the needs of others
appreciate and use environmental sources responsibly

Vision Statement
In February 2019, Irish Girl Guides began consulting with over 10,000 members to develop a new Vision Statement.
With input from girls and Leaders around the country, a shortlist was circulated to all 530 Units for a democratic vote.
In December 2019, a new vision was declared for the Irish Girl Guides:
Today there is a place for girls to be themselves, a place where there is diversity, equality, a place to
make a difference, and that place is Girl Guides.
Core Values
The core values of the organisation are clearly
expressed in the Promise and Law which form the
fundamental ethos of the organisation, and in the
methods used and encouraged throughout Guiding:
• progressive self-development
• learning by doing
• teamwork through the Patrol system
• service in the community
• relationship with nature
• active cooperation between young people
and adults
• international experience

Promise and Law
The Promise and Law underpin our members’
everyday lives and our Leaders act as positive role
models for the girls in the way we work together as
a team to develop self-confidence in the next
generation of girls in Ireland:
I promise on my honour, to do my best
to do my duty to my God* and my country,
to help other people at all times
and to obey the Guide Law.
*the word “God” may be replaced by the word “faith” according
to one’s spiritual beliefs .

Global Community
IGG has full membership of the World Association of Girl Guides and Girl Scouts (WAGGGS) through the
Council of Irish Guiding Associations (CIGA). WAGGGS is the world’s largest movement for girls and women
with 10 million members in over 150 countries. Through this network our members learn about global issues and
advocacy. Girl Guiding offers wonderful travel opportunities for youth members and adult Leaders both around
Ireland and the wider world participating in conferences, camping events and hiking expeditions.

6|Page

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

IRISH GIRL GUIDES

3.

Achievements and Performance

The organisation is guided by a strategic plan covering 2016–2022 called #IGG2022. It sets out
IGG’s broad direction and annual priorities for each year in that period. Belong, Journey, Impact,
and Support are the four key strands of #IGG2022. The plan was developed following an
evaluation of the previous strategy and included wide stakeholder consultation. It was launched at a
National Leaders’ event in February 2016 originally as 2016-2020. In late 2018, the Board and
committees reviewed the progress and due to its clear layout and achievements to date, decided to
spend time in 2019 extending the plan to 2022 under the same four key strands. The plan is
outcomes-focussed and lists the outcomes from Better Outcomes, Brighter Futures: The National
Policy Framework for Children and Young People, 2014-2020 from the Department of Children and
Youth Affairs that each activity contributes towards. The plan encompasses all meetings, activities
and events that IGG members are involved in across every county and internationally which all
combine to ensure the organisation meets IGG’s 12 national outcomes. These are listed in the
following pages under each strand.
Each year an operational plan is created from the overall strategic plan under similar headings as in
the plan – Core Objectives, Activity, Core Outputs, Measurement, Responsibility, Core Outcomes.
The Executive Committee, Regional teams, National Programme and Training Committees and the
staff are listed under the Responsibility column to ensure clarity is provided re roles and they are all
accountable for those activities assigned to them. The Operational Plan in this format operates as
our targets for the year and states anticipated numbers involved in each programme/event. Each
activity has an agreed measurement mechanism listed and these are used as our key performance
indicators for the organisation’s performance. Four times a year, the committees review this list and
use a traffic light system to indicate progress and completion. If an activity does not take place, the
reasons for this are minuted in the appropriate committee minutes and if any lessons were learnt
e.g. due to capacity, funding. Between meetings, the CEO and Chief Commissioner are responsible
for keeping the operational plan up to date. The organisation also has PR and Fundraising
strategies which link to the overall Strategic Plan. Annually, figures and feedback are collated to
include a variety of indicators of success such as media coverage, advocacy events, badges
earned, resources distributed, events organised and participant feedback. A sample of these is
available in our annual infographic on the inside covers of this Annual Report and also available on
our website. In tandem with this, staff are managed by their line managers and have regular
appraisals and meetings to discuss targets and goals and monitor their achievement.
As a movement, IGG does not remain static and additional opportunities often arise during the year
or the organisation needs to respond to certain challenges. In this case, additions are presented to
the Board and can be included if capacity and funding allow. Over the following pages, a summary
of the types of activities from 2019 is provided under each strand. From the organisation’s
perspective, following a sad start, it developed into a great year with many successes – new
partnerships formed, new opportunities for members and over 10,000 lives touched through their
involvement in IGG.

#IGG2022
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3.1 Belong
Core Outcomes
•
Members develop life skills and interests as a result of their participation in
local activities and events.
•
More girls benefit from a safe girl-only space where they develop in
confidence at their own pace through non-formal education methods.
•
Girls and women gain knowledge and a sense of belonging through
participation in national and international Guiding activities.
Regional Conferences and Branch Trainings
Objective: To give Leaders an opportunity to get together for training sessions, networking and
exchange of ideas.
In 2019, over 550 Leaders attended seven Regional Conferences and over 500 Leaders attended
Regional trainings. Training topics included Safeguarding and Child Protection, the Journey
Programme, Promise and Law, global connections, the outdoors, First Aid, Online Guide Manager,
IGG Accounts Package and Commissioner trainings.
Regional Camps
Objective: To develop camping opportunities for girls to develop teamwork, resilience and outdoor
skills.
There were a number of regional overnight outdoor camps completed across the country and these
gave the opportunity for over 400 youth members to develop life skills in a safe and supported
environment. Leaders worked hard during these events with 24 women gaining their outdoor
qualifications and further enhancing their own skills.
Community Involvement
Objective: To provide an opportunity for youth and adult members to provide a service to the
community.
Integral to our Promise and Law is to provide service to the community and this is emphasised and
highlighted during a week in spring when all members are encouraged to take part in Good Turn week. This
coincided with An Taisce Spring Clean week and many members took part in this activity through litter
clean-ups in riverbanks, beaches, towns and villages. A group of Senior Branch members volunteered
during Electric Picnic and raised €2752 for Women’s Aid and Focus Ireland. A group of volunteers also
provided an activity area at the Playstival Festival that took place in Airfield in August 2019.
An integral part of the Journey Programme is IGG’s incorporation of Gaisce – The President’s Award
and its service to the community aspect. There was a total of 12 Gaisce Award recipients in 2019 in IGG
including eight bronze and two silver awards. In December 2019, two IGG members were recipients of
the Gold Gaisce Award, Ireland’s highest award for young people. Ailís Ward and Carol Martin were
presented with theirs at a ceremony in Dublin Castle. This was the culmination of work on gaining new
skills and taking new opportunities to further progress their learning journey.
Carol walked the final 120km of the French Camino with
Charleville Senior Branch. “It was one of the most difficult things
I’ve ever done but I got through it with the support of my Guiding
group” she said.
“Things do not come easy to me” Ailís shared. “I wanted to give back to people because the Irish Girl
Guides have very much included and encouraged me within Guiding.”
Senior Branch Weekend and Regional Senior Branch Events
Objective: To give Senior Branch members the opportunity to come together for training sessions,
exchange of ideas and plan for future national activities for their age group.
Three Regions held specific events for this age group that included 45 girls. The annual national event
for Senior Branch age group of 14–30 years is held in November. This year it was held in Galway and
104 Senior Branch members attended. This event gave members an opportunity to come together for
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training sessions, exchange of ideas, making friends and experiencing a national event. During this
event the group took part in pilot activities for the Sustainable Development Goal 12 Responsible
Consumerism Badge that was developed by Senior Branch members with funding from Irish Aid. An
integral part of this event is the Senior Branch Challenge, which promotes teamwork, development,
leadership and presentation skills. North Longford Unit were the lucky winners of this coveted award.
International Activities
Objective: To improve girls’ international knowledge and sense of belonging to an international Guiding
organisation.
An event named Timpeall an Domhain is hosted by the International Committee on a biannual basis.
Units compete at a local level initially and this culminates in a national final. A total of 298 special
badges were awarded for this event. The national event took place in Sunshine House, Balbriggan, Co.
Dublin in April 2019 where the representatives from each of the seven regions participated. The patrols
shared their knowledge and experience on their chosen country while working as a team. This included
presenting a drama which the team had to research and compile, display and present a project and
also complete an outdoor cookery challenge. The winning patrols were North Longford Guides who
won the junior division and Merlin Wood Guides, Galway who won the senior division.
"I enjoyed taking part in Timpeall on Domhain because I learned a lot about
Jordan and the other countries that the other teams did. My favourite part was
watching everybody's performances from their countries."
Aoife, a Guide
"I still can't believe we won. It was good fun and I learned a lot about Jordan. We
made new friends that we hope to meet up with soon."
Jasmine, a Guide
"I enjoyed taking part. I was a bit nervous that our main course wouldn't taste nice, but I think it looked
good. I enjoyed going on stage and watching the other plays. I was really happy that Merlin Woods won
the senior competition because we were sharing a room with them and they were really nice."
Katie, a Guide
Postcard Competition
Objective: To provide Ladybirds, Brownies and Guides with an opportunity to highlight the international
aspect of Guiding.
The global sisterhood of Guiding is unique to membership of Girl Guides and 173 members completed
an art and craft challenge that supported their learning of leadership and the history of the movement.
The proud winners got to see their winning designs used in IGG’s external communications to
celebrate World Thinking Day, which is an international WAGGGS celebration held on 22 February
every year.

International seminars and trainings
Objective: To provide diverse international experiences and events for members and to provide
opportunities to raise Irish voices at a global level and to interact with other organisations.
In 2019, 546 members travelled to camps, seminars, events and trainings abroad representing Ireland
in 14 different countries. These ranged from a Leadership seminar that focused on climate action
called the Helen Storrow Seminar in Switzerland; to the My Europe, My Say event that was held in
Strasbourg and addressed the importance of getting young people involved in Europe . Our
representatives learned communication skills and discussed the lives of young people around the
world.
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Three IGG members travelled to a training and networking event in Slovenia called The Academy. This
is a week-long event for Guiding and Scouting organisations and the trainings are all around the core
priorities of the European Regions of these global networks. Two members travelled to a four-day
training in Brussels that involved skills development, advocacy workshops
and communications training for Guide and Scout External Representatives.
Both girls represent our organisation on National Youth Council of Ireland
committees also.
Four members of IGG took part in the WAGGGS European Conference that
was held in Croatia in the summer of 2019. This provided the members with
an opportunity to learn from other member organisations on governance,
programme delivery and finances. Two workshops were facilitated by the IGG
attendees about the partnerships that have been developed with IGG and the
programmes that has developed through these partnerships. During this
event IGG were delighted to accept on behalf of Jillian Van Turnhout a Medal
of Service which is awarded for outstanding service. Jillian has been representing IGG on the World
Board Governance subcommittee in the past triennium.
“It was a week to remember where challenges were met, new friends were made and lots of fun and
laughter was had along the way”. Ella (Senior Branch) and Aoife (Guide) following first International Camp in
UK.

Juliette Low Seminar
Objective: To provide an opportunity for members to host an
international event in Ireland.
Ireland were represented at this international leadership
development event by eight IGG members aged 18–30 in USA,
Oman, Nigeria, Mexico, Switzerland, Madagascar, France and
Poland. Two members were engaged as global facilitators for this
event in Switzerland and in New York.
At the same time Irish Girl Guides hosted one of the 18
simultaneously run worldwide hubs in Gormanston, Co Meath. Twenty-three young women from 18
countries were welcomed. Three IGG participants took part in this event that was facilitated by a team
of Irish and international global facilitators. The Lead Out programme saw the participants develop their
leadership skills and learn how to tackle gender barriers to leadership . Each participant shares their
learning with 100+ younger Girl Guides over the next two years. The planning phase for this sharing of
their learning began in January 2020 for the IGG participants but has been significantly impacted by
the Covid-19 pandemic.
World Conference Reunion 1999
Objective: To recreate the atmosphere of the WAGGGS World Conference that was held in Dublin in
1999 and reconnect with friendships 20 years on.
This event was organised and attended by 45 members from IGG and Catholic Guides of Ireland who
were involved in some aspect of the organisation of this event in 1999 . The Conference Chair Elspeth
Henderson shared her memories and photos of the event, while others shared their memories and how
much Guiding had come to mean to them following their involvement
in this event.
Ladybird Branch Celebration
Objective: To celebrate the anniversary of the introduction of
Ladybird Branch to IGG.
Ladybirds are the 5-7year old members of IGG. They were
introduced into the organisation in 1989 when the age range was
lowered to include the younger girl and allow her to experience the
fun and adventure while developing in confidence at her own pace.
There were celebrations at local, regional and national level. In June,
two large events saw 600 Ladybirds and their Leaders taking part in activities in Dublin Zoo and in Fota
Wildlife Park in Cork.
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Bloom 2019
Objective: To increase environmental awareness and explore the possibility of completing a service to
the community and support climate action through reducing single use plastics.
IGG were delighted to partner with Earthology at
Bloom 2019 to create a Pledge against Plastic
garden. The postcard garden was created using
recycling materials and gave the opportunity to
IGG members to take part by manufacturing and
supplying eco-bricks and the collection of plastic
bottle tops which were used to build parts of the
display. There was a display wall of pledges
where Guides and Brownies from a Rathgar Unit
had signed their pledges. An Taoiseach Leo
Varadkar spent some time admiring the garden and
even tried out the sofa, which was made entirely
out of eco-bricks (two litre plastic bottles filled with
soft plastics). Peter Donegan, a Royal Horticultural
Society Silver Medal awardee, said the girls’ hard
work and creativity had made him “smile very much” and climate campaigner and author, Lorna Gold, said it
was her favourite garden because “It has the most heart in it”. The theme of reducing plastics linked with our
new SDG 12 and SDG 13 badges.
IGG Partnerships
Objective: To investigate partnerships with other organisations to enhance our programme impact and
to promote collaborative work and to network at youth and charity sector events.
2019 was a year where IGG further developed and promoted partnerships with other organisations to
support the programme and service delivery in preparing the girls and young women for the futu re.
These partnerships included:
• the development of a programme to promote women in the aviation industry with Aer Lingus
• promoting women in engineering through the STEPS programme with Engineers Ireland
• developing a programme for the promotion of SDG 13 Climate Action with Trócaire
• the promotion of STEM skills with Dublin City University’s Lego Education Innovation Studio
and LearnIT saw IGG teams take part in the FIRST LEGO league, and take part in IGG and
DCU’s Robotics camps for Guide and Senior Branch members in June 2019
• #FutureCEOs partnership with East Coast Bakehouse for our Cookies programme
• collaboration with European Movement Ireland to educate and gain an understanding of the
European Union and how it affects the lives of Irish citizens through three new Europe badges.
These were launched on Europe Day in May by Minister of State for European Affairs Helen
McEntee in Iveagh House, Dept. of Foreign Affairs, Dublin with youth members from Banagher.
• the agreement with Gaisce of the continued inclusion of the Gaisce programme in IGG’s Senior
Branch programme.
A group of Senior Branch members took part in the National Youth Council of Ireland’s Youth Work
Showcase that was held in June 2019 in the Mansion House Dublin. They shared with their local politicians
how being members of IGG has impacted them and helped them grow in independence. The national Youth
Work Showcase brought together over 300 young people representing every constituency in Ireland to
celebrate the value, diversity and vitality of youth work in Ireland.
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3.2 Journey
Core Outcomes
•
Through the progressive Journey Programme, girls and your women learn
skills, attitudes, healthy behaviours and Guiding values.
•
Girls and women are empowered to be active citizens through
membership of a global Guiding movement that is environmentally
conscious.
•
Girls and women take action as advocates for Guiding and active
global citizenship.
I joined Irish Girl Guides in 2014 as a shy and
nervous Guide with very little confidence. I
have now been involved in Guiding for four
years and I have gained a vast amount of skills
but what l feel I have gained the most is the
confidence to be myself. Now, anything I put my
mind to, I can do.
Guiding has given me the ability to be
adventurous, confident, a survivor, unique,
inventive, amazing, limitless, an advocate and a
Guiding sister.

Senior Branch Centenary Celebrations
Objective: To provide Senior Branch members
with an opportunity to travel to India and celebrate
100 years of Senior Branch while learning about
another culture, take part in service projects and
training events on a theme of the SDGs.
Fifty members took part in this event. They learned
about Guiding at a global level and were linked
with community action projects in the locality
where they were staying. One of their tasks was to
consider how India recycles waste and reduces
plastic packaging.

The participants used their learning and
knowledge from the event to develop a
Responsible Consumerism badge linked to SDG
12. The badge which is being supported by Irish Aid’s Development Education grant will encourage
IGG members to reduce single use plastic. This programme development involved research and
evaluation of the knowledge and learning that would be relevant to the varying age group; and
following a pilot of the resources at the Senior Branch weekend the new programme was ready to be
launched at a National Leader training event in February 2020. The resources to accompany this
programme were developed and uploaded to Online Guide Manager for all to access. This group
gained many other skills as they spoke on various social media platforms about the impact of their trip
and the process of planning, acting and doing it to successfully deliver this programme for all members
of IGG.
As well as participating in community action projects, the group explored the area, met local people and
experienced Indian culture, went on hikes and shopped for saris. It was a life-changing experience for all
who took part. Reflecting on the experience, one Senior Branch member, Ailbhe Mangan, said the trip easily
exceeded her expectations and that “we were provided with a trip of a lifetime that opened my eyes to the
amount of poverty in the world.”
Caoimhe, aged 14

From this group four Senior Branch members from Tralee and
Dunshaughlin represented IGG at a UN Youth Delegate event in
Farmleigh House. Two of the girls were given the opportunity to
address the audience which included the President of the UN
General Assembly Mr Tijjani Muhammad-Band and climate
activists from around the country. They talked about their
experience on the Senior Branch trip to India during the summer
and the work that IGG is undertaking in relation to climate action
and the SDGs. They spoke about the Climate Action badge that
IGG has developed with Trócaire and about the plans for a
Responsible Consumerism badge in collaboration with Irish Aid.
Other centenary celebrations were held during the year including the Senior Branch national weekend, the
Explorer Belt and the Senior Branch challenge. Further celebration events are planned for 2020.
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National Guide Awards
Objective: To recognise and celebrate the achievement of those Guides who attain the National Guide
Award by completing all challenges in the Guide programme.
Irish Girl Guides’ highest award for Guides, the National Guide Award was presented to 135 Guides at
a special ceremony in Croke Park on 12 October 2019. The girls travelled from all corners of Ireland,
with their Leaders and families, to receive the award and to celebrate reaching the pinnacle of the
Guide Branch Journey Programme. Each girl received a Trail Blazer gold pin from IGG President
Maureen Murphy and a National Guide Award certificate from IGG Chief Commissioner Helen
Concannon.
Congratulating the recipients, IGG President Maureen Murphy said, “it is a privilege to be here today to
celebrate and acknowledge the achievements of our Trail Blazers who have all shown commitment in
completing the challenges and, in doing so, putting your individual footprint on your tasks. You are inspirational,
you will inspire younger members and take your learning and experiences gained into your communities and
wider society.”
IGG’s Honorary Ambassador, Dr Niamh Shaw, said she was “especially excited” to attend the
National Guide Awards to celebrate and acknowledge all the recipients’ outstanding
achievements and contributions to the Irish Girl Guides. “I want you to keep contributing your
very best to everything you pursue in life because you are our future, Ireland’s future,” she said.
“We can create any future we want if we dream big enough and work hard enough,” she
continued. “I can already see that working hard comes easy to you all, so nothing can possibly
stop you from becoming whatever you want in your life.”
Each of the girls present on the day were acknowledged for their hard work, their Leaders’ encouragement
and their parents’ support. Here is a sample of just two of these amazing girls:
“During my four years at Guides I earned numerous badges; some I worked on with a group and others
individually. Some of these are: Guiding Traditions, Outdoor Cook, Campers Way, Drug Awareness, Global
Traveller, Healthy Mind and, of course, everyone’s favourite – the Chocolate badge. The badge I would like to
share with you is one I completed with all my Unit in my Trailblazer year and it is the Disability Awareness badge.
We completed this with Sinead who was a Gold Award Guide as a teen. We looked at deafness and we learned
the alphabet in sign language. In week two Sinead brought in a wheelchair and we had to perform several tasks,
including getting into the building, turning on the light, getting something from both a low and high shelf in the
cupboard. We then discussed the difficulties faced by people with disabilities daily.
The highlight of this badge was our visit from Diane. Diane suffered a spinal cord injury after a car accident at the
age of 21 while a student at college studying to be a primary teacher. She gave us a detailed account of how she
dealt with this change in her life, both physically and mentally. We then got to ask questions; we could have stayed
all night, as it was so interesting. Diane did go back to college and today she teaches Junior Infants. In the final
week, in our patrols we made sensory mats - three were donated to local schools with autism units and the other
to a local family. I loved my time in Guides and hope to achieve many more badges now I am a Senior Brancher”.
Zoe from Ballybay Guides
“On Saturday 12 October 2019 I was very proud and happy to be one of the
135 girls who received the highest award in Guiding – the Trail Blazer
National Guide Award. My Guiding journey began four years ago when I
moved from Brownies to Guides after spending three years in Brownies and
three years in Ladybirds.
When I joined Guides and got my Guide Travel Folder, I was so excited to
see all the badges I could earn. I made a promise to myself to earn all the
badges in my four years as a Guide. This was greatly helped by the support
of my Guide Leaders and my parents.
I worked on as many of the badges I could by myself at the weekend and
doing a badge every four to five weeks in my Unit helped me work through
all of the 60 Guide interest badges.”
Bernadette from Edenderry Guides

The National Guide Award programme was developed based on the 15 IGG National Programme
Outcomes. These outcomes are an integral part of the Journey programme and some of the gains are:
•
having a clearer sense of their identity
•
showing greater skill in gathering and evaluating information for decision making
•
better able to initiate and maintain cooperation within their teams
•
being able to discuss and engage in global issues and work on ways to help.
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Explorer Belt
Objective: To challenge Senior Branch girls to work in small teams, learn budgeting and independent
living skills, and cope with challenges and projects while hiking through unknown terrain.
An amazing 12 intrepid explorers took part in this event and they did not know where they were going
until they arrived at the airport! They were then dropped in a location in the country to embark on an
adventure of self-discovery and each person had to dig deep into their personal resilience and
strength. They adventured in the Flanders region of Belgium where they completed geographical,
cultural and historical projects while getting to know the area and the people living there. Teamwork
was the essence as they carried their possessions throughout this journey of 180km over 10 days. One
of the participants, Anna Higgins told how she “realised that I’m far more resilient than I thought I could be.
By signing up I wanted to be an inspiration for my own Guides and Senior Branch. I proved that if I can do it,
anyone can! Below is a Dr. Seuss-inspired poem, composed for the award ceremony by Jemma Lee,
one of the event organisers.

Oh the Places we Went
When the bus dropped us off
We started to fret.
Where on earth would we go?
How much food would we get?
There were landmarks and towns
And road after road.
We had no time to frown,
It was time now to go.
We had brains in our heads
And feet in our shoes.
We could take ourselves
Any direction we'd choose.
There was field after field.
The canals were so long.
They said it wouldn't be easy
And no, they weren't wrong.

The people were kind.
They had showers - and beds!
So we pretended not to mind
That our packs felt full of lead.

But we could and we did
And looks at us now.
We're all still alive.
We're not really sure how.

We ate so much bread,
Sometimes soup, beans, or eggs.
Anything would do
To keep strength in our legs.

We saw belfries and cemeteries.
We climbed up a big hill.
We could not forget this place.
We never will.

We met horses and lamas
And wallabies too!
Lots of cute puppies
We could start up a zoo!

We are grateful for all
The kind people we met.
We could never imagine
The kindness we'd get.

We had odd conversations
As the days dragged on.
We laughed and we cried.
We sang all kinds of songs.

We might sleep for a few days
But after a while
We'll think back and remember
And hopefully smile.

Our backs started to ache
And our blisters were sore.
What were we thinking
Could we really do more?

Oh the places we went!

Media Training
Objective: To train young women in advocating and give them the skills necessary to promote IGG in
various media forms.
A training day was held in March 2019 and 13 members of the IGG Media Panel were trained in
different ways to advocate issues through a variety of media e.g. radio skills, video recording, blogging
and media presentations. This day was facilitated by Rick O’Shea and Jillian Van Turnhout.
Leader Training
Objective: To provide Leaders with the experience of coping and living outdoors, and to train them in
the skills necessary to do this in preparation for International Camp 2021.
IGG launched their international camp Octagon 2021 at the National Conference in February 2019.
Leaders were encouraged to complete their outdoor qualifications in order to be able to allow the youth
members and other adult Leaders experience the outdoors and build on their learning and resilience.
In 2019 there were 24 Leader camping qualifications issued and 18 indoor overnight qualifications
issued. Training for Leaders was presented through direct training events and through a process of
mentoring at many Unit camps and four Regional camps. Some examples of the outdoor trainings
provided:
•
a weekend training camp held in Eastern Region for 16 Leaders
•
outdoor training as part of Basic Standard Training in Eastern Region
•
a national weekend training camp in Kilkenny for 35 Leaders
•
a training on outdoors and risk assessment in South West Region for 25 Leaders
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The training and Leader qualifications allow for our members to experience this fantastic element of the
Guiding programme and continue the learning experience and journey for all members.
World Thinking Day
Objective: To increase girls’ and Leaders’ awareness of the International aspect of Guiding and to
encourage them to think globally.
Units across the country joined their sister Girl Guides and Girl Scouts from around the world to
celebrate on World Thinking Day in 2019 and each Unit highlighted the work of the World Association,
which represents 150 countries and over 10 million members. The theme was designed to inspire
participants to reflect on how to put equity and inclusion into practice, and to celebrate the diversity in our
communities and beyond. IGG members donated €6,681.40 to the World Thinking Day fund.
Ladybird Sleepover Badge
Objective: To provide an opportunity for Ladybirds to develop skills of independence.
A pilot programme was completed with Ladybirds, our 5-7 year olds, on providing an opportunity for
Ladybirds to develop their independence skills through an overnight event. This pilot was completed
successfully in Cork and Dublin with 10 girls and nine Leaders from Mallow, Kinsale and Lucan Ladybird
Units. Based on the success of these events it was recognised the significance of the learning
experience for this age group and the proposal to develop this further was agreed upon. A badge
syllabus was developed to support this activity, and this badge was launched at a national Leader
training event in February 2020.
Science, Technology, Engineering, Art and Maths (STEAM)
Objective: To provide Guide and Senior Branch members with the opportunity to get involved with
STEAM activities.
In 2018 IGG received an invitation to take part in the FIRST Lego League 2019 and after an application
process two teams were formed with members coming from different Units in Ireland. The girls were
aged 10-17 years. The two teams consisting of six Guides and three Senior Branch members
competed in the 2019 event and one team was awarded winners in the research category in DCU.
In June 2019, 21 Guides and Senior Branch members successfully completed a mission to blast off ‘Into
Orbit’ at a LEGO robotics summer academy in DCU’s LEGO Education Innovation Studio. The girls were
aged between 12-17 years and travelled from all over Ireland. Through a series of hands-on, engaging
workshops the girls discovered programming concepts, experienced elements of computational thinking
and developed an understanding of a range of mechanical engineering procedures.
“It’s been great to see them engage with STEM challenges in a fun and interesting way. It’s great too to see
them being collaborative thinkers and resilient problem-solvers,” said Dara Callanan, IGG Leader in
Drogheda and recent science education graduate
from DCU.
Daire Keogh, Deputy President of DCU, said he
was delighted to attend the award ceremony
where the girls were presented with certificates. “It
is hugely important for DCU to partner with the
Irish Girl Guides as we share a vision of
transformation and the empowerment of women
and girls,” he said. “We’re in total agreement with
Irish Girl Guides when they say, ‘Girls With
Dreams Become Women With Vision’.”
Irish Girl Guides also partnered with Engineers Ireland in 2019 to run a competition for the Brownie
Engineer of the Year and Clogherhead, Co. Louth were the winners with a water conservation project.
Members worked on the Brownie and Guide Engineering badges as well as Science Investigator,
Money Matters, STEM for Ladybirds, Online Surfer and the Brownie Techno interest badges.
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New Aviation Badges
Objective: To challenge stereotypes and develop girls’ knowledge and skills of aviation.
Our partnership with Aer Lingus was initiated in 2018 through a connection with
Yvonne De Silva, Aer Lingus’ Head of Operations Control and a former Guide . In
February 2019 at the National Conference, Yvonne and her daughter Leah, a
member of Senior Branch, launched the badge syllabus. The aim is to develop
STEAM skills and raise awareness of potential career paths. The programme is a
progressive programme for all members with three badges to earn.
Leaders completed training sessions at the National Conference to enable them to
run this badge with our youth members. Resources were produced with Aer Lingus
to support this programme and made available to all Leaders through the IGG
publication Trefoil News, and also through resources area in Online Guide
Manager. There were 2277 Aviation badges presented to youth members in 2019.

Trócaire Partnership - SDG 13
Objective: To provide an opportunity for girls and Leaders to
explore Climate Action and SDG 13.
This partnership was developed by the IGG Membership,
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (MEDI) committee with
Trócaire to explore the SDG theme of Climate Action for all
age groups. A programme was developed and launched at
IGG National Conference in February 2019 and Áine
O’Driscoll from Trócaire attended to promote the launch of this badge. In 2019 there were 448 badges
by girls demonstrating how they are going to make positive outcomes for the future of all of our lives.
Four Senior Branch members took part in a Learning Leadership and Youth Development Education
Programme in Larch Hill in Dublin in August 2019. Our partnership with Trócaire engages our young
people and volunteers through a process of interaction, reflection and action. Our members are supported to
make connections between their own lives and international social justice issues and be empowered to
make a positive difference in the world.
#FutureCEOs Cookie Programme
Objective: To provide an opportunity for the development of entrepreneurial and teamwork skills.
IGG entered its third National Cookie Month following the successful inaugural Cookie programme in
2017. With a new flavour added this year, almost 70 Units sold 14,077 packets. This venture provided
the opportunity for members to be visible in their communities
and develop their skills. A number of Units donated their cookies
and/or their funds raised to local charitable causes. It was
fabulous to have the on-going support of businesswoman
Alison Cowzer of RTE’s Dragon’s Den. The girls of
Carrigdhoun Guide Unit in Cork, who sold the most packets in
2018, were treated to a business skills masterclass with
Alison Cowzer when she took time out to visit their Unit in
Cork and shared her top tips. The top selling Unit in 2019 was
the Merlin Wood Unit in Galway who sold 1500 packets.
The development of the new flavour was supported by a grant from the Ulster Bank Skills and
Opportunities Fund which enabled girls to get involved in a taste test to decide on the flavour and the
design of new packaging.
Ventact
Objective: To provide members with an opportunity to camp or complete an event with other Guiding
and Scouting organisations in Ireland.
Twenty IGG members took part in Ventact which is a joint event with the Catholic Guides of Ireland and
SI, held annually in Kilcully campsite in Cork for the last 41 years. The girls took part as participants and
also as service team to support the operation of this event. The girls came from different Units and
undertook a range of activities pushing them outside their comfort zone, learning new skills and making
new friends.
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3.3. Impact
Core Outcomes
•
IGG members are trained in leadership skills from an early age and every
member has the opportunity to develop and enhance these skills throughout
their involvement in the organisation.
•
IGG has a strong visibility as an inclusive organisation across Ireland and
members are encouraged to speak out on a variety of relevant issues.
•
IGG is recognised as complying with best practice in the community and
voluntary sector and as a registered charity.
IGG Honorary Ambassador
Objective: To develop networks with inspiring women for girls to meet and to highlight Trail Blazers.
A high-profile trail blazer is chosen to represent the
organisation on an annual basis. IGG started the year with
Kate and Annie Madden of FenuHealth who were an
inspiration to our members on what can be achieved by
young entrepreneurs. In April 2019 Dr Niamh Shaw was
our newly selected Ambassador and she spoke about
promoting curiosity in the world around us. Many
members had contact with Dr Shaw as she attended the
National Guide Awards, Ladybird Birthday in Dublin Zoo,
had a Q&A session with some youth members, shared her
enthusiasm through the DCU LEGO Robotics events and
also started a link with CIT Blackrock Observatory to
develop a Space badge for launch in 2020.
Patrol Leader Training
Objective: To ensure that older Guides who have taken
on a leadership role as a Patrol Leader have the skills
and the knowledge required to fulfil their role as peer
educators.
In Kilkenny,123 Guides attended a weekend of skill
building - teamwork, group work and leadership. They
learned about leadership styles and how to involve
others in the team, as well as have the opportunity to
learn from each other and develop friendships, all
through participation. At this national event the group
were consulted on their vision for IGG and the benefits
of participating in a youth programme. This consultation
style of working with a team and brainstorming with their Patrols was used so that when they return to
their Units, they can use the skill as well as it being a transferable skill to other aspects of their lives.
Programme Activities in the Community
Objective: To be active in the community showing IGG as a vibrant dynamic youth organisation.
Many groups were active in their local communities and had the experience of activities, adventures and
community participation. At a national and regional level over 2000 members attended the annual Gaiety
Panto in Dublin, 400 girls and Leaders went to the Lime Tree Theatre in Limerick and members attended
the Panto in the Everyman Theatre in Cork.
There were a multitude of Ladybird and Brownie Days out held in the Regions e.g. Mid West Region had
245 Brownies and 154 Ladybirds at a Regional Day Event in Bunratty Castle and Folk Park; North West
Region had Area events in Donegal for 96 members and in Mayo for 130 members. North East Region
held a number of events including one in Drogheda Area that had over 100 girls take part in an annual
outdoor event. Overnight trips are an integral part of the programme on offer where the youth members
are given the opportunity to further develop their development through structured and unstructured
activity that enhances learning. Eastern Region, South West Region, West & Central Midlands Region
and South East Region organised a number of these important aspects of our programme in 2019.
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IGG continues to be open and inclusive as outlined in one of our core values and the Guide Law - ‘a
Guide is a friend to all and a sister to every other Guide’ and this was supported by the opening of a new
Guide Unit in Mosney Direct Provision Centre, where there was already a Brownie Unit in operation. This
was supported through use of IGG’s Outreach Fund. Adult and youth members are also linked to a local
IGG Unit in Wicklow Town. Many Units also took part in the Darkness Into Light walk to raise awareness
of suicide and members of Ardagh Units, Longford, took part in Painting it Pink for Breast Cancer.
Irish Girl Guides partnered with An Cosán to offer a blended learning opportunity to volunteer Leaders
but unfortunately costs and timing were prohibitive. We hope to run it again in the future and in the
meantime our shared ethos continues to connect us. IGG was delighted to have Liz Waters, CEO of An
Cosán speak at our National Conference in February and share her insights on a career in education and
working with women to improve their opportunities and the impact this can have on their families.
Programme Pitstop
Objective: To consistently plan and review all aspects of the organisation to ensure IGG continues to
meet the needs of girls and women.
In 2018 and 2019 a review of the IGG Journey Programme was instigated. This review was completed
with Leaders and youth members. Following this consultation process some amendments in the structure
of the yearly badges was made and this was introduced in September 2019. The 15 National Outcomes
for the Journey Programme did not change, and they remain relevant to the weekly programmes. The
resource materials, available in hard and soft copy, and Online Guide Manager were all updated with
SDG references, as well as the youth members’ resources. This information was shared in the autumn
edition of Trefoil News which is sent by post to 1500 homes and available on our website.
Child Protection & Warrant Trainings
Objective: To ensure that prospective volunteer Leaders fulfil the requirements to gain their warrant.
Trainings are held locally on request through the year and Assistant Leader training is available online.
Resources and modular training sessions were developed in line with best practice in youth work and
provided at local and regional level. An updated training pack was launched in February 2019 with 20
IGG Safeguarding and Child Protection Trainers updated on legislation and the standard presentation.
There were 18 trainings held in 2019 and 349 attendees consisting of both new and existing Leaders. A
record is kept nationally of these trainings and attendees.
IGG had a training module for members between the ages of 14-17 in a leadership role, to inform them
of their responsibilities in the area of Safeguarding and Child Protection. This training module was
transferred to an online format at the end of 2019 and to date 26 have completed this training module. At
the same time two other online training modules were developed and launched in 2019 - a Safeguarding
and Child Protection Refresher Course, completed by 112 to date, and the Assistant Leader information
training completed by 36 to date. The online trainings consist of information sharing with questions at the
end in order to successfully complete the course. These courses are available on the IGG website.
Commissioner Training
Objective: To ensure IGG’s Commissioners have the skills and
knowledge needed in order to fulfil their roles and responsibilities.
Trainings were provided at regional level for IGG Area and District
Commissioners. These trainings allowed for the sharing of resources,
skills and increase in knowledge. A training was held in Eastern Region
and South West Region which was attended by a total of 24
Commissioners. There was a national training on our data management
system Online Guide Manager provided in Tallaght in April 2019 which
was attended by 22 Commissioners.
National Committee Members
Objective: To provide a forum for members of IGG’s National Board plus regional and national staff
members to meet together and network, to discuss matters of national interest and to plan for the future
of the organisation.
An event took place in April 2019 at which 35 volunteers and staff were in attendance. Teamwork and
communication were key elements of the day. The vision for IGG was further explored using the
information and suggestions gathered from members. The Strategic and Operational Plan for 2019 was
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reviewed and the 2020 Operational Plan was initiated. This was also an opportunity to provide training
and updates on the Governance Code and Charities Regulator compliance requirements for the
organisation and to conduct an activity on the UN’s Sustainable Development Goals.
Compliance and Awards
Objective: To ensure compliance with best practice and regulatory codes .
IGG continues to maintain up-to-date information with the Charities Regulator and submissions on behalf
of IGG for the Lobbying report were completed quarterly.
Previously, the Board of IGG made the decision that all Units in IGG would be registered with the
Charities Regulator as one organisation, as it was felt that the burden of administration on the local
Leader was already a challenge. This required the development of a plan for moving towards
consolidation of accounts which was started in 2018 when Governance Roadshows were held around
the country and the use of the IGG Accounts package was introduced. The process for audit of the
accounts package is an evolving process and required the development of a system on Online Guide
Manager to assist with sharing accounts information. Leaders were also trained to be peer educators at a
local level on the IGG Accounts package. Training was provided at the National Conference, at all seven
Regional Conferences and at local level throughout 2019. This process will continue in 2020.
IGG continues to be compliant with the Community, Voluntary and Charitable Organisations’ Governance
Code and in 2019, worked to ensure any gaps between that Code and the Charities Regulator’s Code
were completed. Good Governance is a standing item on the Board agenda.
IGG held their AGM in April 2019 and presented the 2018 Annual Report
and Financial Statements for approval. An EGM was held in September
to consider the conversion to a CLG.
Irish Girl Guides received its sixth successive Gold Health Quality Mark
from the National Youth Council of Ireland (NYCI) in recognition of our
work on health promotion for young people. Lisa Harold from the NYCI
National Youth Health Programme presented the award at our National
Programme and Training Committee meeting in May and said:
“This award is a testament to the hard work and dedication of all at Irish
Girl Guides. They are committed to the highest quality standards in
health promotion and it is clear that ensuring a healthy and safe place
for young people and staff is a key priority here. Congratulations are in
order to the staff volunteers and young people of the service, especially
those who have guided the organisation through the process to ensure
that their work is in line with national and international best practice in
the area of youth health promotion."
▪
▪
▪

▪
▪

Trócaire and Irish Girl Guides were listed in the Best Collaboration category of the D óchas Awards
in October 2019 for our SDG 13 Climate Action badges and resources.
In May 2019, Irish Girl Guides’ international camp ‘IGGNITE’ was a County Winner in Tipperary as
part of the National Lottery’s Good Causes Awards.
Appreciation of volunteers is very important in IGG and at the AGM there was a presentation of 50year Service pins to 4 amazing individuals in recognition of their service to IGG. The members who
received these awards in 2019 were Gill Buckley, Aine Guerin, Joan Gregg and Margery Godi nho.
Many other service pins were presented to volunteers for service around the country.
IGG received an EU Business Award for the Best Social Enterprise and Yo ung Persons Enterprise
in 2019 in relation to the #FutureCEOs Cookie Programme.
During the year, a total of over 55,000 badges were earned by members of IGG – each one
recognising a moment where a girl or young woman was acknowledged for doing her best to
increase her knowledge, improve her skills or take action on an issue that matters to her.
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3.4 Support
Core Outcomes
•
Volunteers are up skilled to mentor, support and empower the girls
throughout their journey.
•
An ethos of teamwork is evident in the nurturing environment where the
focus is on learning by doing.
•
By means of intergenerational learning IGG members gain skills and
qualifications transferable to other aspects of their lives.
Leader Training – Trainers’ Conference
Objective: To enable current and prospective Trainers to get together to network and share best practice
in training methods and materials, and to provide support to prospective Trainers by assigning a mentor
to each of them who will support them through their journey to gaining the Trainer qualification.
The National Trainers’ Conference was held in November in Nenagh, Co Tipperary. This was a
residential event that promotes the sharing of knowledge and the up-skilling of all attendees. There were
32 Trainers present for this event.
During 2019 fourteen Leaders joined the IGG Trainers pathway. Each new Trainer, as part of the
pathway, are assigned a mentor. Eleven of them attended the Trainers’ Conference where they were
introduced to the requirements to become a Trainer. Experienced and Trainee Trainers received training
in the use of Online Guide Manager for uploading programme materials and also conflict resolution.
Leader Training – Information Technology
Objectives: To provide opportunities for Leaders to develop IT skills to help them in their Guiding roles
and to ensure IGG’s Leaders can access standardised training which creates an awareness about key
issues in relation to good financial reporting in line with the Charities Act.
To promote the use of online forms, to develop a booking system for IGG properties through the IGG
website and to provide online trainings through the IGG website.
•

Eighteen Leaders were trained as peer educators in Online Guide Manager at two trainings held in
Dublin and Cork. This is a database system for recording and managing information in a secure
and safe manner. This system also includes an event booking system for the local Unit Leaders to
use with parents, plus it has a system for allowing a parent to access their child’s personal data,
the badge information related to their child and the programme plans for the Unit. IGG made the
decision in 2019 to supply this service to all Units in IGG using a Gold Plus package.

•

Leaders were trained as peer educators in the IGG Accounts Package, which is the IGG excel
package that all Units use to record the financial transactions for the Unit. This Accounts Package
has been specifically developed and adapted for IGG Units and committees. IGG have an on-going
training and education pathway that will continue at local and regional level to ensure everyone is
able to use it. An updated resource pack on the Accounts Package was supplied to all Units.

•

An online Cottage booking system was developed and introduced in 2019 in February 2019.
Training was provided to the Cottage Wardens and there were 119 bookings made through the
website following the introduction of this system. The booking system allows for the online payment
of a deposit for the IGG property. The system was introduced to reduce the burden on the Leaders
when booking the IGG properties for overnight events. IGG introduced the use of online forms
through the website this year and this is an area for
further development as additional forms are added as
required to the website. To support this development,
following a review of Information Technology in IGG,
and being cognisant of Data Protection Guidelines a
policy on use of E-signatures was introduced to support
the use of the online forms for internal processes only.
IGG continues to receive the signature of a parent or
guardian on all consent forms. This practice is
constantly reviewed from a Data Protection viewpoint.
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Leader Training - through Publications
Objective: To publish and distribute magazines for Leaders (Trefoil News) and Senior Branch (The
Welly) free of charge throughout the year, which provide ideas for programme material, enable leaders to
share good practice, raise awareness of pertinent advocacy issues, and advertise trainings and
opportunities.
Continuous support and training material are provided freely to all volunteer Leaders to enable them to
carry out the Journey Programme at their weekly meetings, at camps and indoor overnight events or on
day activities. These were updated in 2019 to include references to the UN’s Sustainable Development
Goals. This year 1600 Leaders received 5 colourful themed editions of Trefoil News and 758 copies of
The Welly were distributed to all Senior Branch members, Trainers and Guide Units in November.
Leader Training - National Conference
Objective: To provide Leaders with a forum for discussing practical aspects of the
organisation and provide training on relevant topics.
In February 2019, 220 Leaders attended the IGG National Conference in Galway. The
theme was “Fly, Explore, Blaze to the Stars” to provide a platform for discussion and
sharing of information on IGG matters. IGG launched the Aviation Badge that was
developed in partnership with Aer Lingus, and the Trócaire SDG 13 Climate Action
badge with Aine O Driscoll of Trócaire. Training sessions on the available resources and
materials was provided. There were presentations on Eurojam – a European Guide and
Scout camp being held in Poland in 2020; IT Strategy and outcomes; WAGGGS Voices
against Violence programme; training activities on STEM and outdoor activities; and
helpdesks on IGG Accounts Package and OGM. Leaders took part in sessions to review
the Journey Programme interest badges. An opportunity for Open Forum questions was available and
there was also a session on planning and growth in the seven administrative Regions of IGG.
Regular Committee Meetings
Objective: To enable members of National Committees and Regional Teams to get together to network
and share ideas for the running of the organisation.
Irish Girl Guides relies on the commitment of our volunteers and staff. Over 100 committee meetings
were held in 2019, most at weekends and evenings to accommodate volunteers’ availability. Nationally,
IGG have 18 committees and regionally another seven committees all of which organise events and
trainings to support the members.
Irish Girl Guides were also represented externally on the Board of the National Youth Council of Ireland
by Jenna Goodwin and Lucy O’Donovan and on the Children’s Rights Alliance Board by Maureen Dillon.
At a European level, IGG was represented by Jenna Goodwin and Jemma Lee on the WAGGGS
External Relations Committee; and by Beth Moody on the Communications Committee during the last
triennium. Sarah O’Donovan is currently representing IGG on the Europe Region External Relations
committee and Jillian van Turnhout represented IGG at world level on the Governance Sub-committee.
Staff Training
Objective: To ensure the staff are updated on all aspects of their work and the organisation.
Regular staff meetings are organised with all Regional Development Officers and the National Office
staff which provides a platform for staff training on policy updates, as well as feedback on training
courses attended. All staff complete an annual appraisal and during this, training needs are identified in
order to carry out their roles. In-house training is provided to new staff members as part of their induction
process. A summary of external trainings attended in 2019 include Volunteer Strategy Workshop at the
National Volunteer Conference, Data Protection, Skills Summary (NYCI), Leave No Trace and Outdoor
Skills, Garda Vetting and Designated Liaison Officer training, Employment Law, Volunteering and SDGs,
Cork Lifelong Learning workshop and a Charities and Company Law seminar.
Leader and Staff Support
Objective: To support volunteers and staff in their role as Leaders in IGG.
Recognising the importance of our Leaders’ and staff health and well-being, IGG entered into a
partnership with an on-call counselling service. As a health promoting organisation, IGG supports
wellbeing through both actions at events and also through the badges in the Journey Programme. At the
National Conference, members took to the Prom in Salthill to walk in solidarity with Women’s Aid Walk
for Women fundraising campaign. A group of Senior Branch members from Cork attended an event in
Switzerland regarding Action on Body Confidence to learn how we can advocate for this important topic.
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3.5 Challenges and Opportunities in 2019
While Irish Girl Guides have had a number of successes in 2019, we also faced some challenges. By
far the hardest test of 2019, was the premature passing after a short illness of our new Managing
Director Suzanne Smith. It has been a difficult time for the organisation and our thoughts and
continued support are always primarily with her family.
Staffing
Following the introduction of a short-term Operations Manager role to support the staff during a difficult
period, the Executive Committee reviewed the needs of the organisation and created a new staff
structure. The role of Operations Manager was maintained and in July, a new CEO was recruited to
join the IGG Team. We also welcomed three new Development Officers at regional level and a new
Technical and Data Management Support role at national level was created. The staff team in IGG
have worked tirelessly in 2019 with a number of volunteers to ensure the organisation maintain ed its
high standards and continued to provide a valuable youth service for its members throughout the year.
The organisation thanks all staff that worked for Irish Girl Guides in 2019.
Funding
As a not-for-profit, Irish Girl Guides continues to rely on both membership fees and grant funding to
operate and support the Units nationwide. In 2019, the Finance Committee worked hard to diversify
the funding streams and reduce any potential over-reliance on any one source. Details of the actions
taken are outlined in the finance section of this report. The challenge became an opportunity as by
reaching out to other organisation and corporates, a number of partnerships have developed . Our
members have benefitted both through training opportunities, provision of resources and funding to
reduce the badge costs incurred by Units and their members.
Consolidation of Accounts
Since the Charity Act was introduced, Irish Girl Guides has been working to develop a consolidated
accounting system for all financial records across every project, committee, Region, Area, District and Unit.
This involves the introduction of an accounts package that needs to be easy to use whilst maintaining the
required level of record-keeping for any charity. As an organisation with over 530 individual Units each with
their own income and accounts, this is a complex process with a number of challenges. Up-skilling
volunteers in terms of IT skills and equipment is a challenge and thankfully our Train-the-Trainer approach
has enabled the trainings to occur across the country in people’s kitchens, meeting halls and coffee shops.
Ensuring that all volunteers feel confident in their use of the Accounts Package is a challenge we continue
to work on through these practical hands-on trainings and through the support from staff at all levels.
Compliance
The importance of legal frameworks when dealing with childre n and young people is paramount to
our work. Any additions to this legislation require additional training and administration requirements
for our staff and over 1500 volunteers. While we endeavour to keep everyone abreast of every
change, it can be a challenge to re-train our volunteers given the spread across every county in
Ireland and volunteers’ availability for training. This year, funding was spent to develop online
trainings and enhance Online Guide Manager to allow for uploading of documents for compliance
purposes.
The burden of compliance is both a challenge and a risk for an organisation reliant on volunteers.
Whilst everyone involved in IGG strives for excellence, the reality of the additional administrative work
needed to comply with the varying new reporting requirements is an additional burden. Volunteers
usually join a youth movement to work with young people, and so having to spend many hours on
maintaining records and filing reports can be a challenge. Our organisational response to this i s to
provide report templates and training on administrative tasks and to encourage the use of technology
if it is effective and efficient in reducing the paperwork required.
Legal Structure
IGG is an unincorporated association since it’s inception in 1911. In 2019, the initial steps were taken to
enable IGG to become a registered company limited by guarantee. This resulted in an EGM being called to
amend the Constitution and Bye-Laws to enable the process to begin. Whilst this was a challenge at the
beginning of 2019, it is one we have embraced and the new CLG has been created. In 2020-2021, the
conversion from one structure to the other will be completed.
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3.6 Future Developments
Irish Girl Guides is committed to the #IGG2022 Strategic Plan and will continue to monitor the
achievements of its objectives under the strands of Belong, Journey, Impact and Support. All
committees have annual targets which are aligned to this Strategic Plan and a draft plan is in place
one to two years in advance. Committees and Regions have input into the final versions when they
analyse their capacity to deliver and depending on the funding available. Key learnings from 2019 will
be incorporated into 2020’s Operational Plan and the cyclical review of policies and projects will
continue. Work will continue on our conversion to a CLG and the transition to SORP consolidated
accounts. We look forward to contributing to the successor of the National Youth Strategy 20152020, the soon to be launched National Volunteering Strategy 2020-2025 and Irish Aid’s
Development Education Strategy 2017-2023.

Impact of Covid-19 Global Pandemic
Although the public health restrictions due to this outbreak of the disease did not begin in 2019, at the
time of writing this report, we are in the midst of the situation. Our sympathies are firstly with those who
have lost a loved one and our thoughts and supports are with those dealing with the crisis on the frontline
and at home. Many of our members have been affected as families, employees, employers, carers,
parents, youth members and Leaders. The impact on everyone cannot be underestimated and in true
Guiding spirit we will continue through difficult times with our Promise and Law as our guide.
Research on the Impact of Being a Girl Guide
Gathering data for monitoring and evaluation purposed is very important. Measuring the short-term
inputs, outputs and outcomes is an achievable task. However, measuring the long-term impact of being
involved in a non-formal education programme like Girl Guides is a more time-consuming exercise. At
the Management Day in 2019, it was identified by staff and volunteers, that the need to do some further
research on the long-term impact of Guiding is important in today’s society where statistics and figures
can sometimes not tell the full story. IGG has been in operation for over 110 years and has a vast
network of current members and alumni scattered all around the world. Capturing the value they place
on their Girl Guiding experience would be a very worthwhile activity. Initial discussions were held in
2019 with two universities and it is hoped in 2020 to develop this further.
Recently, a potential funder was interested in finding out more about their Founder’s involvement in the
Irish Girl Guides. Thanks to our excellent membership records and our Archives Team, we were able to
locate the details of her membership, the Units she worked with and even retrieved ph otos of her at
camps in the 1920s and 30s from our repository in the National Archives of Ireland. The wealth of
knowledge on Irish women’s involvement in the organisation pre-dates the Irish state and the impact of
being a Girl Guide since 1910 would be a fascinating research project.
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Volunteers
As an organisation, we will continue with
our core activities and will grow and
recruit volunteers to help fulfil our mission.
Being able to offer our Guiding
programme to more girls and women is a
key aspiration for our future. In 2018, we
launched a Become a Volunteer video,
and this was followed in 2019 with a
toolkit for Leaders to help with
Recruitment and Retention of volunteers.
In 2020, we hope to provide further
support to our 1500 volunteer Leaders to
enable them to fulfil their roles. Our
membership numbers have stayed
consistently between 10,500 and 12,000
over the last quarter of a century. Our
future plans are to increase the number of
girls and young women who benefit from
Girl Guides through supporting the
volunteer Leaders and developing a
greater understanding amongst the public
of what Guiding is. Our PR strategy will
assist with this and our Communications
Committee, staff and Media Panel are
continuously up-skilled through training
and information to be voices for the organisation
across a variety of media platforms.
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Diversity of Funding
IGG will continue to work to secure diverse and sustainable funding streams and to grow our
fundraising capacity. The #FutureCEOs Cookie programme will be reviewed in 2020 after its 3-year
cycle and an analysis of its income generation and business skills development will take place.
The organisation has entered into a number of partnerships with other organisations to help fulfil the
mission and provide new opportunities for our members e.g. Trocaire, Dublin City University,
European Movement Ireland, Engineers Ireland and Aer Lingus. Whilst none of these has generated
large sources of income, they have enriched the experiences our members have and created greater
awareness around what Irish Girl Guides do across the country. We have signed Memorandum’s of
Understanding with a number of partners beyond 2019 and we hope to develop more based on those
who have approached us this year.
Ambassador Role
The Honorary Ambassador role is an annual one in IGG and it has been a great source of inspirational
stories and connections since it started in 2016 with Justice Catherine McGuiness. Sinead Burke, Kate
and Annie Madden and Niamh Shaw have followed in her footsteps and provided many of our
members with opportunities to meet, discuss their dreams and become motivated by their success
through determination. They have each come from different walks of life, different careers and
industries. We are indebted to them all for giving their time so generously to the future generations of
female change makers. In 2020, the new Ambassador is Shirley McCay, an accomplished Irish
sportswoman and we hope will further develop the number of girls and women taking on, persisting at
and discussing sports in Ireland.

National Training Centre for the Irish Girl Guides
In 2019, after a long search, IGG bought a new property in Dublin and set about turning this blank canvas
in Belgard Square, Tallaght into the Irish Girl Guides National Training Centre. Strong and pragmatic
women have chartered our geographical history and have made our transitions possible. Up to 1935 Irish
Guiding had no National Headquarters, but that year, Lady Powerscourt negotiated the lease of the top
floor of 4 Dawson Street in Dublin city (now the well-known offices of Trailfinders!). The office was sparse
to begin with but in a short piece of writing taken from the history of the move, it was the many kind
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benefactors who made this a new home: “To 4 Dawson Street our only piece of furniture, a very small
cupboard, was triumphantly removed. Our spirits were then raised by the gift of a cheerful roll of
carpeting from the Deputy Chief Commissioner. The Chief Commissioner presented curtains and an
invaluable table to which Mrs. Lombard Murphy added a cloth, Lady Walsh a blotter and Miss de Selby
an inkstand. To her we also owe gratitude for a charming little picture, and to Lady Murphy for a clock, to
Miss Kenny for bookshelves, to Miss Dease and Mrs. Leigh-White for a carved tray and to Mrs. and Miss
Beatty for the brass plate on the door.’’

We now need the modern day Miss de Selby’s, the Lady Walsh’s and the Miss Beatty’s - but to lend
innovation instead of curtain linings, ingenuity instead of ink blotter’s and inspiration in place of
bookshelves and brass plates, and most importantly funding to help create a unique and productive
space for our members, and the sisters behind them, to become the change makers of the future.
But what is a challenge other than an invitation for a solution? Our new purpose-led building will meet the
expanding needs of IGG and be accessible to Guides and Leaders from across Ireland, while allowing for
growth into the future. When it is renovated and furnished, our new fully wheelchair accessible
headquarters will include training rooms, collaboration and maker spaces, office space and our
Distribution Centre. But more than that, this Centre will give Guides and Leaders from all backgrounds a
holistic space to spark and develop new ideas and to equip the next generation of Irish female role
models.
As well as successfully securing Capital Funding from Department of Children and Youth Affairs, IGG is
researching other grant opportunities and seeking corporate support. Fundraising for this new state-ofthe-art training centre will be a large part of the organisation’s focus in 2020.

Photos: top left and right indicate current interiors, bottom left and right indicate architects’ drawings of the
external and internal plans. Further photographs and a video are available on www.irishgirlguides.ie
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The financial affairs of the organisation are managed by the Finance Committee with responsibility to and
in consultation with the Executive Committee (Board of Trustees). The Finance Committee is responsible
for the audit, budgeting and finances which are all subject to detailed review. Adequate systems of internal
control are in place which aim to ensure compliance with laws and policies, ensure efficient and effective
use of resources, safeguard assets and maintain the integrity of the financial information produced. A
conflict of loyalty and a conflict of interest policy operates at Board level and all Trustee s make an annual
declaration of their interests. The Finance Committee members bring a variety of skills, knowledge and
talents to the decision-making process and of the Committee and six members of Finance Committee are
also members of the Board. Further details are provided under the Governance section of this Report.
Each Unit, District and Area keeps proper financial records for which they appoint a Treasurer who
monitors the finances at local level. Regions and committees keep proper financial record s which are
checked by the Finance Committee on an annual basis. An external auditor checks the national accounts.
The Statement of Financial Activities, Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Position and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 for the national accounts are set
out in our Financial Statements. Irish Girl Guides is currently in process of consolidating the data from all
530 locally held Unit accounts, in consultation with the Charities Regulator and in line with the Charities
Act. Also to note is that all salaries in 2019 were below the required threshold for public disclosure.
4.1 Reserves Policy
IGG’s Executive Committee has a Reserves Policy to ensure the stability of the mission, programmes,
employment and on-going operations of the organisation and to provide a source of internal funds for
organisational priorities. It is intended to support the goals and strategies contained in the governance and
financial policies of the organisation. It has been agreed that the most appropriate level of reserves should
be kept at the level of €187.000 which would equate to six months operational costs but at a reduced
capacity. The recommended Reserves for Regions who operate in properties held in Trust for the Irish Girl
Guides is €25,000 per property to a max of €50,000 per Region. The seven regional structures within IGG
also maintain a minimum level of reserve, sufficient for one year’s organisational costs. The Reserves
Policy is reviewed on an annual basis.
Over the last number of years, Irish Girl Guides has maintained higher reserves than the required level
stated as above in the Reserves Policy. These Reserves are detailed as Provisions in the Financial
Statements. IGG has been maintaining reserves for property development in the hopes of acquiring a
suitable building for a Training Centre or relocation of our National Office. In 2019, we purchased suc h a
building and so are in the process of spending down our reserves by using those funds for this purpose.
The organisation also holds a large-scale international camp every four to five years and so funding is set
aside annually for this event to ensure it is financially viable. The list of Provisions for Future Development
and Expenditure has been allocated from previous surpluses for anticipated future expenditure on specific
projects over the coming years.
4.2 National Funding Analysis
The audited accounts for 2019 are presented to General Council by Julie Stephens, National Treasurer,
and represent the Irish Girl Guides National Office Administration, Distribution Centre and National
Memorial Cottage Audited Accounts for the trading year 2019. They d etail the income and expenditure of
three sub sections within the accounts and then review how IGG apportion the Department of Children &
Youth Affairs - Youth Services Grant in 2019. As per IGG accounting policies for 2019 our audited
accounts do not include camp, regional, branch or committee activities, which are internally audited.
In summary, the overall income and expenditure position of the organisation reported an overall deficit of
€58,909 for the organisation for 2019 which is due in the main to a fall of membership income and the
increase in professional and legal fees due to the temporary staffing situation and changes over the course
of 2019 and an increase in IT costs.
The administration income for 2019 totalled €794,876, an increase on 2018 due to additional grants and
sponsorship. IGG received a Youth Services Grant from the Department of Children and Youth Affairs
totalling €401,927 which was a much-appreciated increase on 2018.
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Membership fee income was €274,463 which was down almost €10,000 on 2018 . The membership fee
was maintained at €40.00 of which €28.00 was deemed the national portion and €12.00 is apportioned to
each Region. With Board approval, the membership fee will be increased to €45 in 2020 to help with
increasing costs. Other Grants, sponsorships and sundry income totalled €118,486 in 2019 – which is an
increase of over €30,000 on 2018 and is evidence of our work on diversification of funding sources. This
included additional DCYA Capital Funding of €20,000 for our new National Training Centre, an Irish Aid
Development Education Grant from the Department of Foreign Affairs of €25,000, a Trócaire grant of
€5,000 and WAGGGS funding for our hosting of the Juliette Low Seminar. IGG also received the second
allocation of our two-year funding from Ulster Bank Skills and Opportunities fund of €4,100 to develop a
second flavour of cookies and sponsorship for new badges from Aer Lingus and European Movement
Ireland. A full listing of the additional income received by IGG can be viewed in the financial statements.
In relation to the expenditure for National Office, the staff, the Finance, Executive and National Programme
& Training Committees address all areas of expenditure to ensure that the income received by the
organisation is used as effectively as possible. This has resulted in a reduction of spend in some areas, to
enable funds to be focused throughout the organisation. A breakdown of staff costs can be fo und in the
Financial Statements. Whilst staff costs are down slightly overall, the cost of professional and legal fees
has increased as IGG sought external advice and assistance regarding HR during the period when we had
no Managing Director.
Regions are granted a portion of the membership fees based on their numbers and also receive funding to
operate Regional events in line with the IGG Strategic Plan. The Regional grant figure also includes the
Financial Assistance Grant for Units to help individuals who have financial challenges regarding
membership fees and uniform costs, and the funding for volunteers to be qualified in First Aid.
Branch and committee funds have been used for varying events throughout 2019. These have included
National Guide Awards, National Conference Weekend, Ladybird, Brownie, Guide and Senior Branch
events, International themed competitions and overseas travel along with various other programme related
events and Leader trainings over the course of the year. Also showing within t he National Office
expenditure are the increased IT costs to provide online tools for volunteers, enhanced levels of support
via OGM and the development of online courses. Cookie expenditure increased in 2019 as we ran two
flavours and we are grateful to the Ulster Bank Opportunities and Skills Fund, which helped offset some of
the costs involved.
The publications expenditure includes publication and postage of our 2019 Annual Overview, updating of
IGG programme publications for Leaders and 5 issues of Trefoil News. Costs for Trefoil News are
increased on 2018 in line with postage increases and the magazine continues to be a great source of
connection and communication within IGG.
The continued belief that reasonable spend (€11,688) in public relations will benefit the organisation is in
keeping with the IGG Strategic Plan. Volunteers have continue d to make efforts to keep travel expenses
within budget by using public transport, sharing cars and combining meetings. Insurance expenditure was
increased on 2018; administration and overhead costs of €29,312 includes general charges such as water,
refuse, electrical, telephone, gas, printing and stationery. IT support, hardware purchases and
maintenance contracts generally increased in 2019. Eileen Beatty funding has been used to enable IGG
members to attend international events during 2019. Specific gran t expenditure is offset against grant
income received.
Regarding the utilisation of the Government grant from the Department of Children & Youth Affairs, the
Youth Services Grant has been allocated as follows:
- In 2019, €242,427 was allocated towards staff costs.
- €17,255 of grant monies were allocated against IT costs within the organisation.
- A total of €142,245 was allocated against Regional, Branch and committee activities during 2019.
The Income and Expenditure for the Dublin Distribution Centre is also included in the Financial
Statements. The gross profit has increased on last year due to increased purchases, consistent
expenditure levels with an overall positive result for the trading year 2019 of €21,152.
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In the Financial Statements, the National Memorial Cottage, Enniskerry accounts show that income for
2019 was up on 2018 by €645; maintenance and utilities expenditure increased showing a small deficit for
the year of €511. The National Memorial Cottage Committee are thanked for all the work they do
voluntarily as are those who support its use by bringing their Units to stay there.
In 2019, we diversified our funding sources to fund our educational programmes and events. We formed a
number of partnerships which assisted with this including Aer Lingus, European Movement Ireland and
Allianz/LHK. A number of new partnerships are also in discussion stages and we anticipate further support
in the coming years.
With regard to our new National Training Centre, the Finance Committee and Executive Committee
approved the reallocation of some of our reserves towards the refurbishment of the building. This will help
bring our reserves in line with our Reserves Policy. It was also felt that amongst the staff and volun teers,
we lacked fundraising skills as an organisation and the use of a fundraising consultant in conjunction with
a Capital Fundraising Campaign was a good option for the organisation at this point in time. Working with
a consultant, we anticipate a shared learning to enable the organisation to sustain longer term funding
from a variety of sources. As always, there are risks to fundraising and it was agreed the use of a competent
well-reputed consultant would aid the organisation and minimise the risk.
4.3 Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Risk is an everyday part of life in the community and voluntary sector, and managing it effectively is
essential if organisational goals are to be achieved and organisation assets are to be safeguarded. IGG
adopts a structured approach to managing significant risks to which the organisation is exposed. The
Board of Trustees is responsible for ensuring that appropriate procedures are in place to identify, assess
and manage risk from a strategic and operational perspective. IGG has a Risk Management Policy that is
reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. Managerial staff and key volunteers are responsible for
ensuring the Risk Management Policy is implemented and the Risks Register is updated between
meetings if required. Any updates are then presented to the next Board meeting for discussion and
development of any further mitigating actions possible. IGG’s Register lists all potential risks under 4
categories – People, Processes, Profile and Performance. Each one is assigned a level of risk severity
and the likelihood of occurrence. The principal risks identified as high likelihood and high impact in 2019:

high dependency on Dept. of Children & Youth Affairs for finance (Processes)

overburdening of Leaders with paperwork/compliance (People)

bad PR from other organisations/charity sector reflecting on IGG (Profile)

significant decline in membership (People) +/- lack of Leaders for existing Units (People)

loss of staff member/unsupervised handover (People)
The Board took a number of measures to mitigate these risks such as employing a consultant during the
loss of a staff member, ensuring contingency plans for staff were updated, diversifying funding sources as
evidenced in the Financial Statements, hiring a consultant fundraiser and providing training and IT
packages for volunteers to assist with administrative tasks. Due to the risk of decreased membership,
growth was a permanent agenda item at Board level and was addressed by the Regions. In February, Irish
Girl Guides issued a statement to our stakeholders and the media in response to recent public
commentary about Guiding as being similar to another youth organisation in the midst of a safeguarding
investigation. It was and remains important for IGG to distinguish ourselves as an entirely separate
organisation offering a different programme, for females only and with very clear and transparent reporting
mechanisms in line with best practice, which ensure that our members report any concerns they have over
the welfare or safety of a child to the relevant statutory authorities.
4.4 Accounting Records
To ensure proper books and accounting records are kept in accordance the Charities Act, IGG has
established appropriate resources to adequately record the transactions of the organisation. IGG also
ensures that it retains the source of documentation for these transactions. The books of account are
externally audited and maintained at the organisation’s registered office at Trefoil House, 27 Pembroke
Park, Dublin 4.
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Structure, Governance and Management

The organisation is registered with the Charities Regulator (Registered Charity Number: 20006327) and
has been granted charitable status under Sections 207 to 208 of the Taxes Consolidation Act 1996,
Charity No. CHY 4726. The charity makes returns, as appropriate, under the Lobbying Act (2015) and
complies with all regulatory standards for the sector.
5.1 Organisational Structure
The General Council is responsible for the control and general supervision of IGG as per the Constitution
and Bye-Laws. The Executive Committee, subject to the supervision of the General Council, controls and
manages the affairs of IGG.
The National Programme and Training Committee, subject to the supervision of the General Council, is
responsible for coordinating the development and delivery of all aspects of the Guiding programme and
maintaining communication between National Committees and Branches.
There are seven administrative Regions of IGG. Each Region has a Regional Commissioner who is a
member of the Executive Committee and a Regional committee/team. Within the Region there are
geographical groupings of Areas and Districts, each one having a Commissioner and an Area/District
team. Units of approximately 20–30 girls are run by a team of volunteer Leaders, who have undertaken
the relevant screening and training. Each Unit works with one Branch – Ladybirds aged 5-7, Brownies
aged 7-10, Guides aged 10-14, Senior Branch aged 14-30.

Acronyms Used:
ATOC = Adult Training and Outdoors Committee
CEO = Chief Executive Officer
CIGA = Council of Irish Guiding Associations
IC = International Commissioner
MEDI = Membership, Equality, Diversity & Inclusion
NYCI = National Youth Council of Ireland
P&T = Programme and Training
RC = Regional Commissioner

The diagram above demonstrates the structure of the organisation and shows the links between members and
committees.
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5.2 The Board of Irish Girl Guides and the Committee Structure

The Executive Committee
The Executive Committee is the Board of Trustees and are responsible for the strategic direction of
IGG. The Committee consists of 23 members who meet on average six times per year. They are the
Board of Trustees and have responsibility for the organisation, ensuring it is run professionally and in
keeping with its aims and objectives. All Board members work in a voluntary capacity and do not
receive any remuneration in respect of their services to IGG. Expenses are reimbursed where
claimed in line with Irish Girl Guides’ Expenses policy. The CEO is not a member of Executive but
attends meetings and receives time-in-lieu for the meetings. As IGG is not a registered company,
there is no company secretary.
Member

Role

Appointment Date

Helen Concannon

Chief
Commissioner

Appointed April 2016
until December 2019

Amanda O'Sullivan

Chief
Commissioner

Appointed December
2019 (former Assistant
Chief from Oct. 2018)

Maureen Murphy

President

Appointed June 2020

Thérèse Joyce

Chair of Finance

Appointed December
2016 until Dec. 2019

Evelyn Hayes

Chair of Finance

Appointed December
2019

Julie Stephens

National Treasurer

Appointed September
2018

Jenny Gannon
Lorna Finnegan
Jenna Goodwin
Elizabeth Lynch
Fiona Walsh
Deirdre Henley
Anne Marie Slevin
Caroline Flanagan
Jacqueline Lavelle
Adele Mealey
Mena Timoney
Lisa Enright
Gillian Finan

Programme &
Training
Commissioner
International
Commissioner

Appointed September
2018

NE Regional
Commissioner
E Regional
Commissioner

Appointed September
2016 until July 2019
Appointed August
2019. Resigned as
NYCI Rep. Aug 2019.
Appointed October
2017
Appointed January
2019

SW Regional
Commissioner

Appointed December
2018

WCM Regional
Commissioner
WCM Regional
Commissioner
NW Regional
Commissioner
SE Regional
Commissioner
SE Regional
Commissioner
MW Regional
Commissioner
Constitutions
Committee

Appointed December
2016 until Dec. 2019
Appointed December
2019
Appointed December
2018
Appointed February
2016 until Jan. 2019
Appointed February
2019
Appointed January
2019
Appointed October
2018
Appointed September
2019

International
Commissioner

Lucy O’Donovan

NYCI Rep

Emer O’Sullivan

Trust Corporation

Appointed June 2016

Alison Cahill

CIGA

Appointed October
2018
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Skills Area
Volunteer Unit Leader, Policy, Governance,
Strategic Planning, Leadership, Risk
Management, Development Education, Research
Volunteer Guide Leader, Strategic Planning,
Leadership, Project Management, Safeguarding
Trainer
Trefoil Guild member, Education, Social
Research, Communications, Leadership, Change
Management, Gender Equality
Volunteer Guide Leader, Finance, Leadership,
Communication, Board Experience.
Volunteer Brownie Leader, Finance, Leadership,
Board Experience, Leader Training, Outdoor
Advisor
Non-Unit Volunteer, Finance, Risk Management,
Project Management, Charity Fundraising
Volunteer Unit Leader, Leadership, Programme
Development, Developmental Education, Policy,
Risk Management, Leader Training
Non Unit Volunteer, Education, Event planning,
Project Management, Leadership
Volunteer Guide Leader, Governance, Finance,
Risk Management, Communications, Compliance
for Not-for-Profit, NGO Board Experience.
Volunteer Guide Leader, Education and
Training, Leadership, Outdoor Advisor
Volunteer Guide Leader, Volunteering,
Leadership, Event Planning, Project Management
Volunteer Guide Leader, Leadership Training,
Communications, Growth and Development, Risk
Management, Outdoor Advisor
Volunteer Guide Leader, Volunteering, Leader
Training, Education, Outdoor Advisor
Volunteer Unit Leader, Leadership, Growth and
Development, Change Management, Teamwork
Volunteer Brownie Leader, Leadership,
Volunteering, Teamwork, Event Planning
Volunteer Guide Leader, Education, Leadership,
Outdoors, Event Planning, Compliance.
Volunteer Unit Leader, Human Resource,
Leadership, Research, Gender Equality
Volunteer Brownie Leader, Leadership,
Volunteering, Teamwork
Volunteer Ladybird Leader, Communications,
Leadership, Marketing and PR, Research
Volunteer Guide Leader, Marketing and PR,
Volunteering, Leadership, Event Planning
Volunteer Guide Leader, Risk Management,
Leadership, Volunteering, Policy
Volunteer Senior Branch Leader, Leadership,
Communication, Marketing and PR
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Member

Role

Appointment Date

Skills Areas

Claire Colfer

Legal Expert

Appointed January
2017

Volunteer Brownie Leader, Legal advisor,
Compliance and Governance, Policy

Aine Divilly

Assistant Chief
Commissioner

Nicola Le Roux

Minute Secretary

Appointed January
2018
Appointed June 2018

Volunteer Brownie Leader, Education, Project
Management, Policy, Event Planning
Volunteer Guide Leader, Finance, Company
Secretary Experience, Compliance

Board Meetings
The Board of Trustees (Executive Committee) meeting attendance in 2019 was excellent. The average
attendance rate at a meeting was 94%, with full attendance at two of the year’s six Board meetings.
Fourteen members had a 100% attendance rate.
Voting Members

26/01

Helen Concannon
Maureen Murphy
Therese Joyce
Julie Stephens
Elizabeth Lynch
Fiona Walsh
Deirdre Henley
Anne Marie Slevin
Jacqueline Lavelle
Lisa Enright
Mena Timoney
Adele Mealey
Lorna Finnegan
Jenna Goodwin
Emer O’Sullivan
Gillian Finan
Jenny Gannon
Alison Cahill
Lucy O’Donovan

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
--Y*
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
---

06/04
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
--Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
---

08/06

07/09

19/10

07/12

Y
N
Y
Y
Y*
Y
Y
Y
Y
N
Y
--Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
---

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
----Y#
Y
Y
N
Y
---

Y
Y
Y
N
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y*
N
----Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
N

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
----Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

* Indicates substitute attended

#Jenna Goodwin changed position on committee

Non- Voting Members

26/01

Claire Colfer
Áine Divilly
Nicola le Roux
Amanda O’Sullivan#
Mary Nugent (staff)
Anne Marie Harte (staff)
Evelyn Hayes
Caroline Flanagan

Y
Y
Y
Y
---------

06/04
N
Y
Y
N
Y
-------

08/06
Y
Y
N
N
Y
-------

07/09 19/10
Y
N
Y
Y
--Y
-----

Y
Y
Y
Y
--Y
-----

07/12
Y
Y
Y
Y
--Y
Y
Y

Total
Attendance
6/6
100%
5/6
83%
6/6
100%
5/6
83%
6/6
100%
6/6
100%
6/6
100%
6/6
100%
6/6
100%
5/6
83%
4/5
80%
1/1
100%
3/3
100%
6/6
100%
6/6
100%
6/6
100%
5/6
100%
6/6
100%
1/2
50%

Total
Attendance
5/6
83%
5/6
83%
5/6
83%
4/6
67%
2/2
100%
3/3
100%
1/1
100%
1/1
100%

Selection and Induction of Board Members
The Board of Trustees of IGG is a body of elected individuals who jointly oversee and govern the activities
of the organisation. Voting members are elected into their roles as per the Constitution and Bye-Laws.
The Chair (Chief Commissioner) appoints two Assistants for a period of a year. These are non-voting positions
and are dual purpose – firstly to supplement any skills or experience deficit that may exist on the committee and
secondly, the Assistants have a role in the organisation’s contingency plans. Assistant must carry out the role of
the Chair if the Chair is unable, until the voting procedure for a replacement can be conducted. Apart from the
Assistants’ roles, the term of office of a Board member is three years with an additional three years permitted.
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Succession planning is an important aspect of board renewal and akin to the ethos of Girl Guides.
Mentoring others in leadership skills is the role of every Leader throughout the organisation and as such,
providing opportunities for others to up-skill and develop is central to what we do. A list of each role’s
dates is available to all Board members and reviewed by the Chair and CEO to ensure there is a balanced
approach to turnover of members within their defined roles.
Intergenerational learning is a fundamental of the Girl Guide movement and IGG places great importance
on having a mixture of ages and experiences at the Board table. Ensuring that the girl’s voice is prominent
is key and so most of the Board are active Leaders in Units around the country. IGG aims to ensure
members under 30 years of age are empowered to be Board members and in 2019, four members of the
Board were under 30 (members of our Senior Branch age bracket).
New Trustees receive an induction pack which includes all appropriate documentation required for them to
undertake their role. Informal support is provided by the Chair or other members through a buddy -system.
A formal Induction Training is provided for new members, to which all members can attend as a refresher.
In June 2019, a Board Induction training was held. As there were a number of new members appointed in
December 2019, a similar Induction training was held in January 2020 also.
National Programme and Training Committee
The function of the National Programme and Training (NPT) Committee, is to co-ordinate the development
and delivery of all aspects of the Guiding Programme by:
•
ensuring that the programme consistently fulfils the aims of Irish Girl Guides as set out in the
mission statement
•
keeping up to date with the work of the National Committees and ensuring that all essential areas
relating to the Journey Programme and training are covered
•
facilitating the regular evaluation, review and update of the Journey Programme
•
ensuring that training opportunities and supports are available to enable Leaders to fulfil their roles
•
ensuring that training opportunities and supports are available to enable Trainers to fulfil their roles
•
ensuring that IGG publications and forms relevant to the Programme are produced and kept up-todate and in-line with the Journey Programme
•
ensuring that all additional badges and activities are uploaded to OGM in the appropriate style;
•
facilitating a communication network between Chairs of all National Committees
•
supporting Chairs of National Committees
•
providing a forum for the sharing of ideas
•
keeping up-to-date with developments in other youth organisations which are relevant to the IGG
programme
•
implementing special projects and themes by appropriate means e.g. ad -hoc committees
•
set up an ad-hoc team to run Branch Weekend (a national Leaders training event)
•
design the theme and training sessions in consultation with Branch Chairs for Branch Weekend
to work within the allocated budget and report to Finance Committee
•
working with the Executive Committee and staff to implement the organisation’s Strategic Plan and
comply with all statutory regulations
Together with the Executive Committee, the National Programme and Training Committee monitor the
activities nationwide quarterly to ensure the organisation achieves its agreed outcomes as stated in our
Strategic Plan #IGG2022. They meet jointly once a year with all staff to share information as a team and to
discuss future plans. Each of the committee who report to NPT, do so through their Chair and each of
those committees have regional representation. This ensures there is two -way communication between
Units and Committees.
In 2019, as part of a staff restructure, the staff support for the National Programme an d Training
Committee changed from CEO and Support Officer, to Operations Manager. The Operations Manager
attends meetings of the Programme and Training Committee without a vote and receives time -in-lieu. The
minute secretary of the committee also became a volunteer role in 2019. According to its Terms of
Reference, the Committee will meet at least three times per year. In 2019, the Committee met four times
and the membership and meeting attendance is indicated in the following table:
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Name

Role on Committee

24/02

Voting Members
Jenny Gannon
Monica McDonnell
Áine Divilly
Carina Egan
Averil O’Connor
Hazel Convery
Sinead Crilly
Aisling Claffey

Chair
Ladybird Branch
Brownie Branch
Guide Branch
Senior Branch
Trefoil Guild
MEDI
Assistant International
Commissioner
Margaret Patterson
ATOC
Beth Moody
Communications
Assistant Chair
Helen Concannon
Chief Commissioner
Sylvia Richardson
Treasurer
Evelyn Hayes
Assistant National
Treasurer
Lauren Flynn
Secretary
Non-Voting (staff) Members
Mary Nugent
Operations Manager
Ruth Hughes
Support Officer
* Indicates substitute attended

18/05

07/09 0 8/11

Total Attendance

Y
Y
Y
N
N
Y
-

Y
Y
Y
Y
N
Y
-

Y
Y
Y
Y*
Y
Y
-

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y*
Y
Y
Y

4/4
4/4
4/4
3/4
1/1
2/4
4/4
1/1

100%
100%
100%
75%
25%
50%
100%
100%

Y
Y

Y
N

Y
Y

Y
Y

4/4
3/4

100%
75%

Y
Y
N

Y
Y
Y

N
Y
Y

Y
N
Y

3/4
3/4
3/4

75%
75%
75%

-

-

-

Y

1/1

100%

N

Y
Y

Y
---

Y
---

3/3
1/2

100%
50%

Board Subcommittee – the Finance Committee
There is one formal permanent subcommittee of the Board, which reports to every Executive Committee
meeting. The Finance Committee presents the budget to the Board for approval and at each meeting
shares management accounts. The Committee purpose is:
a. managing the financial affairs of the Irish Girl Guides, with responsibility to and in consultation
with the Executive Committee to whom a full report will be given at each meeting
b. drawing up an annual budget, in conjunction with the National Treasurer, for pre sentation at
Executive
c. ensuring that the annual accounts are signed off at General Council (AGM)
d. conducting internal audits of District/Area/Regional/committee accounts for monitoring and review
purposes
e. monitoring and reviewing arrangements whereby volunteers and staff may, in confidence, raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial matters and ensuring that these are
independently investigated and acted on if appropriate
f. monitoring and reviewing financial control and risk management systems
According to its Terms of Reference which are available on the IGG website, the Committee will meet at
least four times per year. In 2019, the Committee met six times. Staff members may be invited to attend
the meeting where relevant information is required. The membership and meeting attendance were as
follows:
Name

25/01

09/03

07/06

06/09

13/10

06/12

Total Attendance

Voting members
Therese Joyce*
Helen Concannon*
Julie Stephens*
Elizabeth Lynch*
Sylvia Richardson
Jenny Gannon*

Y
Y
N
Y
N
Y

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
N

Y
Y
Y
N
N
Y

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
N

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Y
N
Y
Y
N
Y

6/6
5/6
5/6
5/6
4/6
5/6
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Non- Voting members
Evelyn Hayes*
Jenna Goodwin*
Naomi Levins (staff)
Anne Marie Harte (staff)
Amanda O’Sullivan*

Y
Y
Y
-----

Y
Y
N
-----

Y
Y
N
-----

Y
Y
N
Y
---

Y
Y
N
Y
---

Y
Y
N
Y
Y

6/6
6/6
1/6
3/3
1/1

100%
100%
17%
100%
100%

* indicates that the person also sits on the Board of Trustees and their skills are outlined elsewhere
in this report.
5.3 Conflicts of Interest and Conflicts of Loyalty
IGG has a Conflicts of Interest and Conflicts and Loyalty Policy which is reviewed and updated every
three years. The purpose of the policy is to outline the behaviour expected of members of the Executive
Committee (Board) with regard to declaring personal interests and also to outline the procedure to be
followed in the event of a disclosure of a conflict of interest or loyalty. All Board members are given the
opportunity to declare conflicts of interest and loyalty at the beginning of each Board meeting as it is a
standing item on the agenda. A register is maintained by the CEO and training on what a conflict of
interest is, is provided during Board Induction.
5.4 Good Governance & Compliance
IGG is registered with the Charities Regulator in Ireland and complies with all statutory obligations. IGG
is compliant with the Governance Code for Community, Voluntary and Charitable Organisations which
ensures the organisation upholds the highest international standards of best practice and ensures
transparency and accountability. The organisation has been classified as a Type C organisation under
the Governance Code. As the Charities Regulator has now published their own Governance Code, the
Board has worked throughout 2019 on reviewing each principle to ensure that each standard is met
comprehensively. IGG will be fully compliant in 2020, for reporting as required in 2021.
IGG is registered with the Lobbying Register and submits quarterly reports. IGG is also a signatory to th e
Dóchas Code of Conduct on Images and Messages and strives to abide by the Leave No Trace
principles. IGG is a member of IDEA, NYCI, NWCI, Children’s Rights Alliance, The Wheel and have
partnership agreements with An Óige and Gaisce – the President’s Award.
IGG was one of the first youth work organisations to take part in the National Quality Standards
Framework for Youth Work (NQSF) when it was introduced. The NQSF enables us to review and assess
our work on a cyclical basis and to have it externally assessed, thereby assisting the continuous
development of services to our members. We have continuously met the gold level standards since its
inauguration.
Since 2014 Irish Girl Guides is officially recognised as meeting the requirements of the Irish Charit ies’
Tax Reform Group (ICTR) Statement of Guiding Principles for Fundraising. This means that we are
committed to complying with this Statement by endeavouring to:
•
adhere to the core principles of respect, honesty and openness
•
demonstrate commitment to donors
•
ensure high standards of fundraising practice
•
be financially accountable
The statement of compliance is available on the IGG website.

Irish Girl Guides produces an Annual Overview, infographic, Annual Report and Financial Statements, all
of which are available on the IGG website and circulated to members and stakeholders.
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Irish Girl Guides
6. Financial Statements Year Ended 31 December 2019
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6.1 Independent Auditors' Report To the Irish Girl Guides
Report on the audit of the financial statements
In our opinion the Irish Girl Guides financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the society as at 31 December
2019 and of the result of the financial year then ended; and
- have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.
The financial statements we have audited comprise:
- the Income and Expenditure Account;
- the Balance Sheet
- the related notes 1 to 11, including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out in note 2.
The relevant financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the historical cost
convention ("the relevant financial reporting framework").
Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described below in the "Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements" section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (Ireland) require us to
report to you were:
- the officers' use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or
- the officers have not been disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the organisation's ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.
Other information
The officers are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Reports and Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st December 2019, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditors' Report To the Irish Girl Guides
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of officers for the financial statements
The officers are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the officers determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the officers are responsible for assessing the organisation's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the officers either intend to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
-

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company's internal control.

-

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the officers.

-

Conclude on the appropriateness of the officers' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organisation's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion.
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Independent Auditors' Report To the Irish Girl Guide
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the entity (or where relevant, the group) to cease to continue as a going
concern.
-

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that the auditor identifies during the audit.
This report is made solely to the organisation. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the organisation those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
organisation, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinion on other matters on which we are required to report
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
-

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider
necessary for the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion the accounting records of the organisation were sufficient to permit
the financial statements to be readily and properly audited.
The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.
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6.2 Income & Expenditure Account
Year ended 31st December 2019
2018
Total

2019
Total
Note
Income
Department of Children & Youth Affairs - Youth
Service Grant
Membership fees
Other Grants, sponsorship and sundry income
Expenditure & provisions (Schedule I)
Surplus/(deficit) on Administration
Surplus/(deficit) on Distribution (Schedule II)
Surplus/(deficit) on National Memorial Cottage
(Schedule III)
Net Surplus/(Deficit) for year
Balance at beginning of year
Balance at end of year

3

€

€
401,927

392,124

274,463
118,486
794,876
853,785
(58,909)

284,406
87,096
763,627
796,040
(32,413)

21,152
(511)

(10,516)
1,152

(38,268)
578,514
540,246

(41,777)
620,291
578,514

On behalf of the Executive Committee and the General Council

Julie Stephens, National Treasurer

Amanda O'Sullivan, Chief Commissioner
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6.3 Balance Sheet
Year ended 31st December 2019
2019
Note

€

2018
€

Financial Assets
Investment accounts

5

77,166

77,172

Current Assets
Bank balances and cash

5

405,841

773,778

Debtors

6

214,458

59,945

Stocks of distribution centre

7

227,811

158 ,189

848,110

991,912

(142,804)

(150,467)

Net Current Assets

705,307

841,446

Total Assets

782,472

918,618

540,246

578,514

242,226

340,104

782,472

918,618

Current Liabilities
Creditors

8

Capital Employed
Revenue account
Provision for future
development and expenses

9

On behalf of the Executive Committee and the General Council

Julie Stephens, National Treasurer

Amanda O'Sullivan, Chief Commissioner
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1. Statement of Executive Committee and General Council Members' Responsibilities
The Executive Committee members are responsible for overseeing the keeping of proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Irish Girl Guides.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Irish Girl Guides and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The General Council members are responsible for considering and approving the audited financial
statements submitted by the National Treasurer each year.
The General Council members are responsible, through the Executive Committee, for arranging the
preparation of financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Irish Girl Guides and of the surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing those financial
statements the General Council members are required to:
• Approve suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
•

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

•

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Irish Girl Guides will continue in operation.

2. Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies adopted by the association are set out below. These policies differ in
some respects from the Statement of Recommended Practice on accounting by charities issued by the
Charity Commissioners for England and Wales ("the SORP"). Compliance with the SORP is not
mandatory, however.
a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements deal with the activities of the National Office of the Irish Girl Guides. These
comprise
a) the collection of membership fees, grants and other income,
b) administration of National Office,
c) sales of uniforms and guide supplies, and
d) the operation of the National Memorial Cottage and related expenditure.
These financial statements do not include regional, branch or committee activities.
b) Premises, office equipment and furniture.
The premises of the Irish Girl Guides, which are principally the National Office at 27 Pembroke Park, The
National Memorial Cottage at Enniskerry and outdoor training centres, are not included in the balance
sheet as title to these properties resides with the Irish Girl Guides Trust Corporation Company Limited By
Guarantee.
Expenditure on National Office premises, office equipment, IT and furniture is written off to the income and
expenditure account in the year in which it is incurred. This is not in accordance with the provisions of
Financial Reporting Standards but is considered appropriate to the association's circumstances.
c) Government Grants
Government grants relating to the annual activities of the association are receivable in respect of a
calendar year and are fully reflected in the income and expenditure account when the related
expenditure is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
Accounting policies - continued
d) Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises the cost of purchase with the addition of charges such as freight or duty where
appropriate.
Net realisable value comprises the actual or estimated selling price less al costs to be incurred in selling
and distribution.
e) Investments
Quoted investments included in investments are stated in the balance sheet at market value. In arriving at
their market value, investments are valued at middle market prices ruling at close of business
at the balance sheet date. Other investments represent cash deposits with financial institutions.
f) Membership fees
Membership fees are accounted for on a cash receipts basis.
g) Provision for future developments
Expenditure in relation to certain projects to be expensed in future years is provided for in the year the
project is agreed.
h) Pensions
The pension obligations of the association are met by payments to a pension plan, the annual
contributions to which are dealt with in the accounting year to which they relate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
42 | P a g e

IRISH GIRL GUIDES

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

3. Other Grants, sponsorship and sundry income

2019
€

DCYA - LGBTI (Capacity Building Initiative)
DCYA - Capital Grant
DTTAS - Sports capital grant
Foundation European - Leadership Training Fund
Leargas - Erasmus + Youth Funding
Cookie income
Rental income
Cottage income
UK Online Giving Foundation
Bank interest received
*Irish Aid Development Education grant
Trócaire grant
Private donation
WAGGGS grants
Eirgrid grant (Lego camp)
Ulster Bank Skills and Opportunities fund
Lifes2good Foundation grant
Aer Lingus
Your Cause
European Movement Ireland (EMI)
LHK / Allianz Safety Guidelines sponsorship
** **Sundry income, donations and fundraising generally

2018
€

-

3,410

20,000
-

2,464
6,000

-

-

19,230
29,390
2,568

27,299
300
194

-

845

-

420
25,000

1,048

5,000
2,000
26,329

5,000

-

4,100

7,500
4,100

-

2,181

-

3,475

2,000
782

-

1,713
750
1,755

-

730

118,486

87,096

-

*Irish Aid development education grant of €25,000 was received in the year in respect of Responsible Consumerism Project Apri l
2019 – April 2020. €13,500 was expended on the project in the year with the balance €11,410 expended in 2020.
**€ 6,764.70 was donated by IGG members and €6,681.40 transferred to World Association of Girl Guides and Girl Scouts
(WAGGGS).

4. Employees
Number of employees
National Office Staff:
Full Time
Part Time
Development Officers:
Part Time
Full Time
Total Staff
Distribution Centre Staff:
Full Time
Part Time
Part Time (9 Months)
Part Time (3/4 Month Contract)
Casual
Total Distribution Centre Staff
Employee costs
National salaries and pensions
Distribution Centre salaries and pensions

43 | P a g e

2019
Number

2018
Number

6

3

5

7

7

7

1

I

19

18

I

0
1

0
1

1

1
4

1
4

7

7

2019

2018

€

€

367,501

402,478

53,837

55,839

421,338

458,317

• There were no employees whose total employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
€60,000.
• There were no employer pension contributions in the period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-continued
5. Investments, bank balances and cash

Investment Accounts *

2019
€

2018

77,166

77,172

299,835
53,114

467,299

200

110

353,150

669,477

25,919
4,519

78,565
2,973

€

Administration
Bank accounts
Property development fund
Thinking Day fund

202,069

Distribution
Bank accounts
Cash on hand
National Memorial Cottage
Bank accounts
Total

22,253

22,764

405,841

773,778

483,007

850,950

37

44

* Eileen Beatty Bequest

AIB ordinary shares
Eileen Beatty International Fund bank account
Eileen Beatty International PO Savings

Note: The market value of the AIB ordinary shares at the year end was
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77,172
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
6. Debtors

Trade Debtors (Distribution)
Trade Debtors (Administration)
IGGTC CLG

2019

2018

€

€

3,573

17,190

6,025

1,832

204,860

40,923

214,458

59,945

227,811

158,189

7. Stocks
Goods for resale - Distribution centre

Stocks represent goods purchased in a finished condition ready for resale by the Distribution centre.
The estimated replacement cost is not materially different from the amount shown above.

8. Creditors
Audit
PAYE/PRSI/USC
Creditors & accruals
Loans from regions

7,011

7,011

9,197

6,332

18,595
108,000

44,124
93,000

142,804

150,467

8,344

12,623

9. Provisions for future development and expenses
World & European conferences
National conference and trainings
Camps
*Property development fund
Computers, IT, Administration
Computers, IT, Distribution centre
IT development
Painting & renovation National Office
Outreach project
First Aid
Service projects
Programme Review & implementation

2,868

39,268

59,305

59,305

64,753

91,813

13,892

13,892

17,000

17,000

13,387

25,244

21,000

21,000

6,942

9,164

4,212

4,212

6,475

6,475

24,049

40,109

242,226

340,104

These provisions have been allocated from current and previous surpluses for anticipated future expenditure on
specific projects.
*This has been set up to assist with building and renovation costs – both regionally and nationally.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- continued
10. Pensions
The association operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the association in an independently administered fund.
There were no contributions to the scheme in 2019.
11. Approval of Financial Statements
The Executive Committee approved the financial statements on 28th March 2020 and General Council of
the Irish Girl Guides approved the financial statements on 5th September 2020.
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6.5 Schedule of Expenditure - Organisation/Administration
Year ended 31st December 2019
National Office expenditure
Salaries and pensions
Other staff costs

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2019
€

Schedule I
2018
€

367,501

402,478

8,614

6,546

Regional grants

46,094

45,910

National committees
Fundraising
Cookie expenditure

78,704
-

60,304
-

43,179

28,991

Publications

7,576

11,266

Trefoil News

29,188

26,752

Public relations

11,688

11,972

Travel expenses volunteers

24,193

23,980

9

14,915

-

-

479

-

International committee - external grant funding

-

28,230

World/European conferences

-

540

Insurance

34,233

32,327

Administration and overhead costs

29,312

27,500

IT costs

63,203

30,459

Subscriptions and affiliations

12,797

11,982

5,289

4,305

23,592

6,888

Bank charges

2,189

756

Eileen Beatty bequest - International committee

7,874

6,326

58,065

13,167

Diane Dixon scholarship

-

425

Provisions current year

-

-

Provision for diminution in value of investments

7

22

853,785

796,040

National conference and trainings
International camps
Camps

Audit fees
Professional and legal fees

Specific grant expenditure
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Schedule II

6.6 Income and Expenditure Account - Distribution
Year ended 31st December 2019

Sales
Cost of sales
Opening stock
Purchases
Postage and packaging
Closing stock

Gross profit

2019
€

2018
€

241,797

242,891

158,189

158,046

196,543

166,492

22,493

15,254

377,225

339,792

(227,811}

(158,189)

149,414

181,603

92,383

61,289

5

3

54,827

55,839

Other Income
Bank interest received
Expenditure
Salaries and pensions
Other staff costs
Insurance
Administration and overhead
IT maintenance
Audit fee
Bank charges
Miscellaneous costs
Total expenditure
Surplus(deficit) for the year
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1,492

1,518

2,374

2,178

2,682

2,138

2,704

2,765

2,706

2,706

4,216

4,074

234

591

71,237

71,808

21,152

(10,516)
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Schedule III

6.7 Income and Expenditure Account - National Memorial Cottage
Year ended 31st December 2019

Income
Rent and other charges
Donations and other income
Bank interest
Total Income
Expenditure
Administration
Utilities
Maintenance
Security
Insurance
Bank charges
Total expenditure
Surplus(deficit) for the year
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2019
€

2018
€

9,445

8,705

430

512

9,875

9,230

964

742

13

2,460

2,367

4,887

3,007

658

658

1,377

1,258

40

45

10,386

8,078

(511)

1,152
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Schedule IV

6.8 Utilisation of Government Grant
Year ended 31st December 2019
2019

2018

€

€

401,927

392,124

401,927

392,124

Allocation to national activities (see below)

259,682

240,736

Allocation to regional, branch & committee activities (see below)

142,245

151,388

401,927

392,124

242,427

226,236

17,255

14,500

259,682

240,736

Grants for year
Department of Children & Youth Affairs - Youth Service Grant
(Administered by Pobal)

Allocation to national activities
Youth service grant:
Staff and development officers
IT costs
Allocation to regional, branch & committee activities
Youth service grant:
Regional grant
Financial assistance to units (regional)
First aid courses (regional)
Branches and committees
Trefoil News & Publications
Volunteer travel expenditure
Public Relations
Insurance
Professional Fees
IT for Region/Branches/Units/OGM

•
•
•

31,500

8,174

9,100

6,420

6,310

31,718

42,996

25,000

32,750

13,500

20,232

8,000
34,233
4,700
10,500

8,500

142,245

151,388

The Irish Girl Guides are in compliance with Department of Finance circulars regarding tax
clearance.
In line with the Governance Code, IGG has the appropriate financial control in place which is
monitored by the Finance Committee.
The purpose of the YSGS grant funding to IGG is to enable girls and young women to develop
their fullest potential as responsible citizens of the world.

50 | P a g e

IRISH GIRL GUIDES

51 | P a g e

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

